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Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1993. The Group is a renowned container
manufacturer in the world and having comprehensive
depot operation networks in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Our manufacturing business is currently supported by
four factories in the PRC. We manufacture a wide range
of products including dry freight containers, collapsible
flatrack containers, open top containers, bitutainers, tank
containers, offshore containers, customised specialised
containers and other specialised containers and container
parts.

Our logistics business includes container depots and
logistics company, and is currently running eight container
depots at the major ports in the PRC — Dalian, Tianjin,
Qingdao, Shanghai, Ningbo, Fuzhou and Xiamen. We also
operate a logistics company in Xiamen, the PRC.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

REVENUE PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
E OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
RN EIRREMLEF (B1E)
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US$’000

FEx

Revenue TR 1,151,764
Profit (loss) attributable to AR R L & ) (B E)

owners of the Company 186,802

Basic earnings (loss) per share (US cents) EARGRARN(ER) (E) 7.73

Net asset value per share (US cents) BREESFEGEWD 27.98

Equity attributable to owners of the Company PIN/NE] Y Y g v 676,272

Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LIRS 438,171

Total borrowings (Note) me s -

Current ratio BN & 3.17to/ b1

Gearing ratio BEREAELE N/A

Net debt to equity ratio B FHEERRES L E N/A

Interest coverage ratio FEZF = 268.9

Return on equity (%) IR AR M 25 (%) 27.6

Note: Total borrowings represent the aggregate amount of interest-bearing borrowings.
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PRODUCTION OUTPUT

Financial Highlights

MBERE

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the operating results of Singamas Container
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”/“we”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

During the year, the Group’s performance improved
significantly, particularly in the second half year. This
improvement was largely driven by an upsurge in demand
for dry freight containers and the increase in average
selling price (“ASP”), the consequence of supply chain
disruption globally. At the same time, another catalyst was
robust consumption in the United States, which included
the strong demand for imported goods as reflected by a
record-high trade deficit of US$861.4 billion in 20211, With
regard to the Group, apart from dry freight containers, our
specialised container operation has also been going well.
Our strategic plans to diversify business and improve
product mix have enabled us to benefit from production
flexibility, and thus allow the Group to better weather
whatever market challenges that may arise.

1 https://www.bea.gov/news/blog/2022-03-08/2021-trade-gap-
8614-billion
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group posted
total consolidated revenue of US$1,151,764,000 (2020:
US$274,305,000) and consolidated profit attributable
to owners of the Company of US$186,802,000 (2020:
US$4,576,000). Excluding the gain on derecognition
of financial assets of US$27,001,000, net profit from
ordinary course of business amounts to US$159,801,000
(Excluding the extraordinary items, net profits from
ordinary course of business in 2020 was US$13,569,000).
Basic earnings per share was US7.73 cents (2020:
US 0.19 cent). The Group continues to be in sound
financial health, with bank balances and cash amounting
to US$438,171,000 as at year end 2021 (2020:
US$48,787,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Manufacturing

The strong demand for dry freight containers
combined with encouraging uptake of customised
containers, particularly energy storage containers,
enabled the manufacturing segment to record revenue
of US$1,117,195,000 for the review year (2020:
US$246,677,000), which accounted for 97% (2020:
89.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Segment profit
before taxation and non-controlling interests amounted to
US$273,220,000 (2020: US$3,009,000).
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(ZZT-TH :274,305,000%7T) : KD A
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

As at 31 December 2021, the manufacturing operation
achieved a total sales volume of approximately 347,000
twenty-foot equivalent units (“TEUs”) (2020: approximately
112,000 TEUSs) for dry freight and ISO specialised
containers. ASP of a 20’ dry freight container rose sharply
to US$3,521, or approximately 1.71 times of the ASP
in the preceding year. The price increase can also be
attributed partly to an appreciable rise in material costs,
including corten steel and plywood as used for container
floors. However, such prices began to moderate by the
fourth quarter of the financial year in line with slower
container demand. Still, labour cost has remained high as
the skilled labour pool continues to be limited.

It is worth noting that the manufacturing operation
exceeded its original design capacity during the review
year. This achievement was the result of increased
investment in automation and greater efficiency. While
production capacity was dedicated largely to the
manufacturing of dry freight containers to address strong
demand during the year, such capacity is highly flexible
and can be adjusted to meet specialised container
demand should the market dictates in the future.
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The customised container business continued to grow
healthily in 2021, driven largely by the demand for
renewable energy related containers. To facilitate this
segment’s ongoing development, the Group will tap its
newly established research and development (“R&D”)
department to develop more container solutions that
capitalise on the environmental protection and renewable
energy trends. Other customised containers that the
Group has developed include medical-related containers
which supported the country greatly especially during
the early days of the COVID-19 outbreak; 5G equipment
containers for data network and infrastructure support, as
well as other digital-data-related containers.

In addition to allocating resources to the research
and development of customised containers, we see
the need to increase its production capacity given the
rising demand, the new facility in Shanghai has been in
operation since the fourth quarter of 2021.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Logistics Services

Continuing to be a stable source of income, the logistics
operation recorded revenue of US$34,569,000 (2020:
US$27,628,000), with segment profit before taxation and
non-controlling interests amounting to US$5,851,000
(2020: US$4,861,000) for the year. During the review
year, approximately 538,000 TEUs (2020: 510,000
TEUSs) of containers were handled and 117,000 TEUs
(2020: 112,000 TEUs) of containers were repaired by the
operation. Given strong export demands, average daily
container storage dropped to 18,000 TEUs (2020: 32,000
TEUs).

With respect to the Group’s interest in Xiamen Logistics,
the investment generated dividend income totalling
US$1,864,000 (2020: US$1,817,000) during the review
year. We remain confident in Xiamen Logistics and its
ability to perform in a stable manner going forward. The
management will continue to closely monitor our logistics
business with a view to streamlining operations so as to
increase efficiency and optimise our business portfolio.

PROSPECTS

In 2022, we anticipate dry freight container demand to
remain stable as global supply chain disruption gradually
eases and container production is able to satisfy demand.
Already, the ASP of dry freight containers started to
retreat in the fourth quarter of 2021, as high production
during last year has led to rising inventory and the recent
drop in material costs. However, with new container
vessel deliveries expected around 2023 and 2024, the
management believes container demand shall go up
thereafter.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021
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While we remain cautiously optimistic about the Group’s
performance, we will continue to actively optimise and
bolster all facets of operation. With respect to customised
containers in particular, and specifically renewable
energy related containers, we remain bullish about their
prospects, hence greater resources will be dedicated to
both R&D and business development to seize relevant
opportunities. With a strengthened financial position, the
Group will internally further develop new products for
various applications, and externally seeking new business
development opportunities, with the objective of creating
synergies and improving overall profitability.

As mentioned in the 2021 Interim Report, the investment
by Heliconia Capital Management Pte. Ltd. (an
independently managed wholly-owned subsidiary of
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited) to PIL Pte. Ltd., the
holding company of Pacific International Line (Private)
Limited (“PIL”"), the controlling shareholder of Singamas
has been completed. The Group does not foresee any
significant changes in the operation of Singamas moving
forward.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my gratitude to all those who
have unwaveringly supported the Group over the past
year, including our business partners, customers and
stakeholders. | wish to also thank the entire Singamas
family for their dedication, efforts and perseverance, which
has allowed the Group to achieve progress in the path
of transforming to “New Singamas”. Despite the many
uncertainties on the horizon, | trust that we will continue to
build on our accomplishments in the coming years.

TEO Siong Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Frequently Asked Questions
— R 1 ]

1. Stepping into the third year of COVID-19 outbreak,
how does the Group see its impact to the industry
and the opportunities ahead?

- During the pandemic, supply chains have
experienced unprecedented disruptions.
In some cases, containers have been
stockpiled at ports, terminals, and elsewhere,
unable to be shipped. In other instances,
manufacturers are producing fewer goods
as they face their own difficulties in arranging
shipments. Additionally, some facilities are
unable to operate efficiently due to workforce
reductions necessitated by national and/or
regional lockdowns, or due to illness within
the workforce.

- However, robust consumption in the US,
especially in the latter half of 2021, led to
high demand for imported goods which in
turn increase demand for the sea freight
services.

- All the reasons above resulted in surging

demand for dry freight containers and the
increase in average selling price (“ASP”).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021
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Upon disposing a majority of the Group’s dry freight
container manufacturing operation, what is the
Group’s sales mix like now and what’s your target
split moving forward? What will be the key factors
impacting your performance moving forward?

- The Group’s sales mix in 2021 was
approximately 90.5% dry freight containers
and 9.5% specialised containers in terms of
revenue.

- Moving forward, with the increased usage
of customised containers in various
industries and the Group’s new production
lines ramping up, we expect the sales
proportion of specialised containers (including
customised containers) to increase.

- Global container demand, trade volume and
vessels delivery will still affect overall results
yet impact will be much smaller moving
forward as the Group diversifies income
sources through investments in research
and development (“R&D”) of new specialised
containers to seize relevant opportunities.

- The demand of customised containers is less
fluctuate and in general the profit margin for
producing specialised containers is better
than the traditional dry freight containers, we
target to have an optimal split of 50:50 of dry
freight containers and specialised containers
in 3 to 5 years.
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Frequently Asked Questions
—RiIZRE

S Besides of traditional shipping and leasing
companies, container trading clients become one of
your customer focus in recent years, as well as new
sectors like power and industrial companies. What
is Singamas’ view towards market demand from
these sectors in 2022 and beyond?

- We expect to receive more dry freight
container orders from container trading
companies as they require higher flexibility in
terms of volume and delivery, as well as more
specific production requirements. These are
orders that could be difficult for conventional
large-scale container producers to take as
it would drag down their efficiency. Having
said that, traditional shipping and leasing
companies remain our important customers
which we would try best to secure the orders
from these companies.

- As mentioned in our Chairman Statement,
we anticipate dry freight container demand
to remain stable as global supply chain
disruption gradually eases and container
production is able to satisfy demand. With
new container vessel deliveries expected
around 2023 and 2024, we believe container
demand shall go up again thereafter.

- For specialised containers, we have
been able to attract satisfactory orders
by providing container solutions to suit
customers’ needs. Diverse use of specialised
containers in non-sea freight purposes
including housing, energy storage, power
generation, electrical equipment, data centre,
sewage treatment and medical applications
etc. provides enormous business
opportunities to the Group. Rapid growth in
renewable and “green” energy to meet with
global trends of carbon neutral, the rise of
big data industry, and environment concerns
are all favourable factors for the growth in
demand for customised containers in 2022
and beyond.
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How has average selling price of the Group’s
containers been affected by the logistic disruptions
in 20217 What do gross margins of the various
types of containers look like?

- ASP of 20’ dry freight containers rose sharply
in 2021, mainly due to the surge in container
demand resulting from logistic disruptions
globally and an appreciable rise in material
costs, including corten steel and plywood as
used for container floors.

- Prices of ISO specialised containers, like
flatrack, open top and bulk containers in
general increased in line with dry freight
containers. For customised containers, as
there is no standard specification for each
batch of orders, the skills and technology
required for producing these containers are
not common in the market. Price setting for
each order is based on the complexity of the
specification along with the labour hours and
material cost required for the production.

- With specialised containers taking up a
more substantial portion of the Group’s
sales moving forward, Singamas will be less
impacted by demand and competition of dry
freight containers. As demand and selling
price of customised containers are expected
to be relatively stable, the increase in its
weighting will enhance the gross margin of
the Group going forward.
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Frequently Asked Questions

—REERH

N What is the order book looking like in 2022 for
dry freight containers and customised containers
respectively?

Demand for dry freight containers are looking
relatively stable, as high production last year
has led to rising inventory, demand is back
to normal. We currently have approximately 2
months of orders on hand.

For customised container production, it
is normally on project basis from product
design, technical drawings, and production
until delivery, the whole process may last
from few weeks to few months. We are
continuously receiving orders for customised
containers without seasonal trends.

6. Does the Group have plans to dispose of any more
of its current operation to further consolidate its
business? How can the Group streamlining its
overall operation and increase efficiency?

The Group reviews its business model
regularly to adjust business strategies suiting
latest market developments. The “New
Singamas” is still on its way to expanding
its product range and clientele, we have
no plans to make further disposals at the
moment.

It is also worth noting that the Group’s
manufacturing operation exceeded its original
design capacity during the year, the result
of increased investment in automation and
greater efficiency. While production capacity
was dedicated largely to the manufacturing
of dry freight containers to address strong
demand during the year, such capacity is
highly flexible and can be adjusted to meet
specialised container demand should the
market dictates in the future.
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How do you expect your R&D function to support
the Group’s long term growth?

Seeing the success achieved from the
introduction of our various specialised
containers, we have dedicated more
resources in our R&D capabilities, as well as
to developing more innovative specialised
containers that cater for the needs of our
customers.

Specifically, our customised container
business grew healthily in 2021, driven largely
by the demand for renewable energy related
containers. We will tap our well established
R&D department to develop more container
solutions that capitalise on the environmental
protection and renewable energy trends.

Supported by the technical and marketing
team, our engineers work with customers
directly for product design, technical
drawings and producing prototype for
meeting customers’ specific needs.

Besides of a very strong team in Shanghai
Baoshan, all of our factories have local
R&D teams to serve local requirements.
With the growth of specialised containers,
number of our R&D staff is growing in line
with the business needs. We believe high
product quality together with best customer
services would win ongoing orders and gain
reputation.

Frequently Asked Questions
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Frequently Asked Questions

—REERH

8. Any plans for expanding production capacity? And
any M&A plans moving forward?

In addition to R&D investments, we see the
need to increase our production capacity
given the rising market demand on various
type of containers. A new facility in Shanghai
has been opened and in operation since the
fourth quarter of 2021.

With a strengthened financial position, we will
internally further develop new products for
various applications, and externally seek new
business development opportunities, with the
objective of creating synergies and improving
overall profitability.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERSEEEASRN

The directors of the Company (“Director’) at the date of RAFRAHET 2 AR AIER(EE)) W

this annual report are as follows: T~

DIRECTORS BE

Mr. Teo Siong Seng *° Chairman and SR PN 4t Ao FEFREETHAAE
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chung Pui King, Executive Director, SR " HITEE

Rebecca * Chief Financial Officer and BEEABEF

Company Secretary NEIHE

Mr. Tan Chor Kee? Non-executive Director PRIBE AL FHERITEE

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng * Non-executive Director TR AE HHITEF

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung ~ Non-executive Director PR B BR S A HHITEF

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, Independent Non-executive BB 7 (3] 5 Ak o BIHPTEF

David #o Director

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan #2  Independent Non-executive LI 7] {5 55 Aol BIIHITESE
Director

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong Independent Non-executive CEE P BUIHRTEE
Director

# Audit Committee Member # FEZLZEEKE

8 Management Committee Member 8 EHEZSEKE

0 Nomination Committee Member g IBELZEEK A

4 Remuneration Committee Member 4 FESEKE

SRS -FEH « BEKELEERAR
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEEEEAESHN

Brief biographical details of the Directors at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, B. Sc. (Naval Architect), aged 67,
was appointed on 20 April 1993, became the President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997 and was appointed as Chairman of the Company on
27 May 2013. Mr. Teo is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Teo started his shipping career with
Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited (“PIL”) Group in
Singapore since 1979. PIL is the controlling shareholder
of the Company as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Teo was appointed
as the managing director of PIL in October 1992 and
appointed as executive chairman of PIL in April 2018. PIL
activities include shipowning, liner shipping, ship agencies,
freight forwarding, container manufacturing, container
depot/terminal operation, warehousing and logistics park.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of
COSCO SHIPPING Energy Transportation Co., Ltd. and
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co., Ltd.; both companies
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is also currently a
non-executive and non-independent director of Keppel
Corporation Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Wilmar International Limited, both companies
are listed on the main board of Singapore Exchange. He
is the Immediate Past Chairman of Singapore Business
Federation, Honorary President of Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry and a director of
Business China. Mr. Teo is the Honorary Consul of The
United Republic of Tanzania in Singapore.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, M.B.A., HKICPA,
FCCA, aged 53, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company on 2 July 2015. She was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company on 2 February 2013 and 10 September
2013 respectively. She is also the director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chung joined the
Group on 1 January 1996. She has more than 30 years of
combined experience in public accountancy, sourcing and
manufacturing.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tan Chor Kee, aged 69, was appointed as Non-
executive Director of the Company on 2 July 2013. Mr.
Tan graduated from the University of Singapore with a first
class honour degree in Mechanical Engineering. He has
more than 44 years of experience in shipping particularly
in equipment management, costs control, corporate
planning, logistics operations, agency and liner business.
Mr. Tan is currently the Advisor of PIL.

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, DBA, MBA (Distinction), M.Acc,
B.Acc (Hons), FCA (Singapore), aged 48, was appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 June
2019. He graduated with B.Acc (Hons) (second upper
honours) and master’s degree in accountancy from
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore. He holds
MBA with Distinction from the University of Leicester, the
United Kingdom, and Doctor of Business Administration
from The University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Kwa has
been the Chief Financial Officer of PIL since 1 October
2017. Prior to joining PIL in 2015 as General Manager
(Finance), he had held a number of senior positions in
finance and accounting in manufacturing and logistics
businesses. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant of the
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung, aged 64, had been an Executive
Director of the Company since 1 March 2012 and re-
designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2022. Mr. Chan is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He had more than
42 years of combined experience in marketing, container
depot management, container inspection and repair, and
container leasing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENEEEEAESHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, aged 73, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 1 November 2012. Mr. Cheng graduated in 1975 from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor (Honors)
Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive experience
in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has assumed the position of independent non-executive
director of Grandland Shipping Limited with effect from
1 January 2016. Mr. Cheng has also been appointed as
independent non-executive director of Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, with effect from 19 December 2016.
He has also been appointed as Independent Director of
Sincere Navigation Corporation, a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, with effect from 28 June 2019.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in
Asia of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May
2014. He has also retired from the Senior Advisor to
Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 30 June 2016 and
retired as a director and honorary chairman of Credit
Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited with effect from 10 July
2020. Grandland Shipping Limited, Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited and Sincere Navigation Corporation are
third parties independent of the Company and connected
persons of the Company. Mr. Cheng has also been
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region for a two years term as Member of
the Maritime and Port Board (“MPB”) and Chairman of the
Promotion and External Relations Committee under the
MPB with effect from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2018. He
is also the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Maritime
Museum. In June 2015, Mr. Cheng was conferred the
Distinction of “Chevalier de I'ordre National du Mérite” by
the French Government.
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Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan, aged 63, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on
1 March 2011. Mr. Lau is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) in Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lau
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial
management. He had been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on the growth enterprise market
of the Stock Exchange, from 13 December 2001 to 1
March 2020. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-
executive director of GBA Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. GBA
Holdings Limited is third party independent of the
Company and connected persons of the Company.

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong, MBA, aged 63, was appointed
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
on 2 October 2019. Mr. Ho graduated from McGill
University, Montreal, Canada in 1984. Mr. Ho is currently
an independent director and has been appointed on 2
December 2021 as a Non-Executive Chairman of China
Shenshan Orchard Holdings Co. Ltd. (formerly known
as Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the main board of Singapore Exchange and
an independent director of NorthCape AS, a Norwegian
financial advisory company. He possesses extensive
experience in assets management and banking industry.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. For the
particulars of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, please refer to
the circular accompanied with this annual report.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management at the date of this annual report
are as follows:

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary
Chief Operating Officer
Vice President

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Ms. Chung Pui King,
Rebecca

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie

Mr. Wu Bing Hong

Details of the senior management at the date of this
annual report are as follows:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng, was appointed as President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 February
1997, then appointed as Chairman of the Company on 27
May 2013. Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
on 2 February 2013 and 10 September 2013 respectively.
Please refer to the Directors section for details.

Ms. Siu Wai Yee, Winnie, aged 50, joined the Group on
1 October 2021 as the Chief Operating Officer Designate
and was appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the
Company on 1 January 2022. Ms. Siu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Business Studies (Majors in Marketing) and
obtained an MBA from IMD Lausanne in Switzerland. She
has over 25 years of extensive experience in container
shipping, manufacturing, leasing and trading plus global
logistics.
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Mr. Wu Bing Hong, aged 49, was appointed as Vice
President of the Company on 1 January 2016. Mr. Wu
is in charge of various divisions of the Group including
Marketing Department and Procurement Department
in Shanghai Management Office. He also assists in
overseeing the operation of the Group’s factories. Mr.
Wu graduated from Guangzhou Ji’nan University with
major in Business Administration and graduated from
Hubei University of Technology with a Bachelor Degree
in Administrative Management. Mr. Wu joined the Group
in 2001. He has over 29 years of experience in container
manufacturing and corporate management.
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Corporo’re Governance Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) as set out in Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our corporate
governance principles, except for the deviation disclosed
below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
not separated. The Board considers that this structure
has the advantage of a strong and consistent leadership
which is conducive to making and implementing decisions
efficiently and consistently.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors is
aware of any information which would reasonably indicate
that the Company is not, or, was not during the year
in compliance with the code provisions of the Code as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”/“Directors”)
believes that appropriate corporate governance
practices are essential for the Company to enhance
its accountability and transparency so as to achieve a
balance of the interests of shareholders, customers,
employees and investment partners of the Company in
all material respects. Accordingly, the Company aims
at maintaining high standards of corporate governance
practices.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

ARFZEBEREERRAREEEATER

Key corporate governance principles and corporate

governance practices of the Company are summarised Bt
below:
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 | FEHKX #E(E) PEERER
A DIRECTORS
E

A The Board&£ =&

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRR

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

EEeRAERENERARNEL  YEBREEREREERREH -

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company, and whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them.
EXERRETHRNEZTOAABTREMBNENER  URFHREFRAMERARMEITEE -

The Board held six meetings in 2021. The Board would meet more

Regular board meetings should be C .

held at least four times a year involving frequently as and when required.

active participation, either in person BEEgN B —FERTARAAER HAFER EZgAQ4
or through electronic means of Eﬁgﬁ’i\%m 2

communication, of majorlty of directors.

AtA

% EETHERREEFELEAMAN e The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, three non-
W X*B §$9 ST g T BB executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
BB AEGRRE . No alternative Director was appointed during 2021.

EXSRBMABRTESF  —E2FRTEFR=EBIIERNTE
FEK - "B FRALBEEEAEEES -

e The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date and details of Directors’ attendance at the Board
meetings held for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out

below:
HE-_T-—F+-_A=+T—RHIEFEREBEZEBRNZESENE
REEHREE S _—FT-_A=+—"HILEFENEEZESE
;30T
Number of
attendance
Name of Directors EERA HERE
Executive Directors HITES
Teo Siong Seng RN 6/6
(Chairman and Chief (TEHKEE
Executive Officer) TTIABE)
Chung Pui King, Rebecca MR 6/6
(Chief Financial Officer and (BERI 457
Company Secretary) R AE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Tan Chor Kee PR i B 6/6
Kwa Wee Keng TER 6/6
Chan Kwok Leung PR B AR 6/6
(re-designed on (R=—F==F
1 January 2022) —A—H#E)

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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SEEARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
AlA Number of
(cont’d) attendance
(8 Name of Directors EEHE HERE
Independent Non- BUFHITES
executive Directors
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B = 6/6
Lau Ho Kit, lvan EEIRGS 6/6
Ho Teck Cheong EE 6/6
e The Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone
conference or by means of a similar communication equipment
or by their alternate in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association (the “Articles”). An updated and
consolidated version of the Company’s Articles (both English
and Chinese versions) are available on the websites of the
Company (http://www.singamas.com) and Stock Exchange
(http://www.hkexnews.hk).
BEAAA  EBERMA(ER2MA]) - FEFUART - BB
EEgRIBALUBAESMEES S IHEBEEERALRE -
RARERMB 2 HFIEERA(RXRAXR) - EFHREAR
zET(hﬁttp://www.singamas.com)&;%?&ﬁfr(http://www.hkexnews.hk)
ABuk o
A.1.2 | All directors are given an opportunity C e All Directors are consulted and are welcomed to include any matter
to include matters in the agenda for in the agenda before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is
regular board meetings. issued.
PREFEARSIELEAIEEIA REEZSTHERTHARREN  EHARBUMEESIENGE
EEGTHERRRE - AR FRIATIAEREHRIE
A1.3 |- Atleast 14 days notice for regular C e The Company gives at least 14 days formal notice before each
board meetings. regular board meeting and gives reasonable notice for other board
OREEgEHezRELEE D meetings.
TR o REBAORESSTHERANEL TORBHEXBM  WiET
HihWEZg R RRECEBA -
— Reasonable notice for other board
meetings.
OREMESSSRERLHAE
A
A.1.4 |Minutes of board meetings and C e The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the

meetings of board committees should
be kept by a duly appointed secretary
of the meeting and should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any director.
KEAZRENSZNERBEFESS
MHEETZESGNGHCHE  FAME
MEFFHARBEN  BARGHAE
B EEENSENRRERH -

Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Management
Committee meetings. Another duly appointed secretary is
responsible for taking minutes of Remuneration Committee
meetings.

AANEERERESE BERXLET REZEGKERZS
EEERE MPFMEZESSBRCHRAHAIN—(IIREZRE MW
EBRERE-

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are sent to all
Directors/Board Committee members within a reasonable time after
each Board and Board Committee meeting.
BREZGREBETZERRERE R ERRALESE
ﬁ%gi%TéE@@Eﬁ%ﬂﬁ/iﬂ%%%Q%Eﬁ%%%/ﬁi%?é‘%%@

B o

e Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are made
available for inspection by Directors/Board Committee members at
the registered office of the Company.
EEgRHBTZE eSS RERIHES ' HETZEZ8
ERERARRGMPFEEER -

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021




Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER

A1.5 |— Minutes of board meetings and C e Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings record
meetings of board committees contain sufficient details of matters considered and decisions
should record in sufficient detail the reached including concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
matters considered and decisions the Directors.
reached. EEghHBETZE SN SR LT OTHEREAIIAEESIEL
EEGRABETZEENgERC FHIERAERIRE - HRBESEERHNEME B RENRY
8 - Jﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁiﬁﬁ%)ﬁiﬁ&L BR -

BEREER A AR e o

e Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft Board

— Draft and final versions of minutes minutes.

for all directors to comment and to EEERENESTSERLHVRRERER -

keep records within a reasonable

time after the board meeting. e Final version of Board minutes is placed on record within a

EFEERERE  BRGERE reasonable t|me after the Board meeting.

BAEEZEE: .:Eﬁ-é’]%)ﬁn&w EEEEBARE  NEERRARESZLHENKEERERT

BREREZXERES  VIRME > i

BEXREER  REERIMEER

B2A -

A1.6 |— A procedure agreed by the C Directors have free access to the legal counsel of the Company and if
board to enable directors, upon needed and upon request, Directors are allowed to seek independent
reasonable request, to seek professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
independent professional advice in BEXNERNBARNRGNAEER  NETERTEERT - EFINA
appropriate circumstances, at the SEXBUEEER WAARRRZNER -
company’s expense.

EEQRZBTERTF  EEFR
SRER  AJEEENBEATE
KBUEEXER  BERAAAX
i o

— The board should resolve to
provide separate independent
professional advice to directors to
assist them perform their duties to
the company.
EEGRBRSINZEFREE
VEEZR  AmBMbfIETE
HARMELE -

A.1.7 |~ If a substantial shareholder or a C e |Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written resolutions

director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by
the board which the board has
determined to be material, the
matter should be dealt with by a
physical board meeting rather than
a written resolution.
EETERIIESTEESTGH
TERNEBETGEREZERAR
BANFEER  BEAEBEEL
BrEEgeR(MIFEEARE)A
N -

Independent non-executive
directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material
interest in the transaction should
be present at that board meeting.
EXGPAREREETHE ALY
BBEARNENB L IERTES
EZEEEANEZSSE -

so that all Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
can note and comment, as appropriate, the matters before approval
is granted.

BEEE-MUEEARRIANEE  UEXBES(REBVIE

HTERENTEREER  URHEBERSR(WER)® - THE
FEH

e Director must declare his/her interest in the matters to be passed in
the resolution, if applicable

ERAMARBRABFBEZ FHPRENEHER) -

e Material transactions with a substantial shareholder or a Director
being a connected person, in general, would be considered
at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, may consider, if appropriate,
granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions.

—MA5 /RT BEAFERRAEE ABEBATETZIERRHA
F%% 2eREE %%(@%ﬁi#iﬂﬁ%%)ﬁé@%iﬂ%%
REEBERLTRA EHERERS

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF

31



32

Corporate Governance Report

TEERBE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
A.1.8 | Arrange appropriate insurance cover C e The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and Officers
in respect of legal action against the L|ab|||ty insurance coverage for its Directors and officers.
directors. _ - NEIHEREFRSRABLHBENEFRSRAEERR
AAERESR LR HEERTE % o
EEE NRIREHE
A2 Chairman and Chief Executive
TR RATHAAE

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRR

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of business of the Company to ensure a balance of power and authority.

EEeNREBTENEBNATEENRTREREREYD - WEREDMEED MISE -

A2.1 |— Roles of chairman and chief E e Mr. Teo Siong Seng took up both roles as the Chairman of the
executive should be separated and Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the roles
should not be performed by the of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not separated. The
same individual. Board considers that this structure has the advantage of a strong
FREETHRASNACERR and consistent leadership which is conducive to making and
5 WAER— ARBIRE - implementing decisions efficiently and consistently.

RINEEERRBEEANAZCESE TR AFITHRERE  mE
- Division of responsibilities between f&%fﬁﬂ(?@%ﬁﬁﬂ%jiT\ D REN BTG  EEERABUERE
the chairman and chief executive ﬁﬁj}?ﬁ{t&ﬁ?‘ BE L AmMARMNMELR REHEA R R —H
should be clearly established and IR
set out in writing.
FTREETHRAR CEBRENS T
EERERELAESHEYIE -

A.2.2 | The chairman should ensure that all C e With the assistance of the executive Directors, the management
directors are properly briefed on issues and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
arising at board meetings. Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
TEERERESS SR LLMAESEY and receive adequate documents and information about the Group
HEMEBEAREE - in a timely manner.

ERTES  EBERAFTNWENHDT  TERHERDEBE
BYRHZASENEETSSRMRECER  URKZHDEREH
AEENXHRESR -

A.2.3 | The chairman should be responsible C e The Board papers including supporting analysis and related
for ensuring that directors receive, in a background information are normally sent to the Directors at least
timely manner, adequate information three working days before the regular Board meetings.
which must be accurate, clear, ESEEANMEREEIMREAEREN  —BREFET
complete and reliable. HEeZBAMM T AR =ALE¥EAEES -
Eﬁﬁﬁaﬁ&ﬁé%&ﬁﬂﬂ 785

Bl - MABEMINNEERSE WI& e Company Secretary acts as a co-ordinator to facilitate the
SEAEAISE © communication between the Directors to ensure that queries

raised and clarification sought by the Directors are dealt with and
further supporting information and/or documentation is provided as
approprlate

NEIMEBEERMAEREESHNEDR BRESHARBLE
zi/ifsaZ%IEZﬁE SEIfE - SR — SR E R RS (i
m#‘v
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TEERRE

Code Ref.

$%34

Code Provisions

FRIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
#3(cl)/
R(E)

Corporate Governance Practices

%E/uﬁﬁ

A2.4

The chairman should provide
leadership for the board.

IENAERREESRS -

The chairman should ensure that
the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and
that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by it in a timely
manner.
ITEERERESSHICLEE -
HERTERARE W RESME
izxﬁ’] M$IEZETTETEW °

The chairman should be primarily
responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each
board meeting. He should take
into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the
other directors for inclusion in
the agenda. The chairman may
delegate this responsibility to
a designated director or the
company secretary.
ITEEITZEEETUHAETR
ﬁ% EH%E’]H%*E th}: ‘i
AT REMESREMAZE
WEMEE - TEAMEEBE
HRETNESH A AIWE -

C

The Chairman of the Board is an executive Director who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board.

EFXgIFERAPTESFLE  ABRENRANERESS -

The Chairman of the Board determines the broad strategic direction
of the Group in consultation with the Board and is responsible for
the high-level oversight of management
EEQIFAEBRAERT SR ASERERR M TEEK
FEEREREREALNE -

All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any
matters in the agenda. The Chairman of the Board designates the
Company Secretary to draw up the agenda by taking into account
the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in

the agenda
REFYELZASSHAEMNBERERINAZEAN -EZFER
%a)ﬁ Wziﬁm%$§’m§§~§§$%&%J§%Eﬁm%$%§§%$lﬁ

IB)FIAERER -

With the support of the executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on all key and appropriate issues on a timely manner.
ERTEFRAAWMERDT  TERBNBRAGESHTE
THEEEREESHE -

i# FF AN

A2.5

The chairman should take primary
responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and
procedures are established.

FTREBER

BiE BRIAGER

I EER %%E&%if

The Chairman of the Board, with the support of the Company
Secretary, takes primary responsibility to establish good corporate
governance practices and procedures of the Company.
EESIRERAAMENGH TEARYARAIRFGERERSR
BERFZEZER/E -

A2.6

The chairman should encourage all
directors to make a full and active
contribution to the board’s affairs
and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the
company.

TRESBMEESE2 NIRAE
EGER - WAKER - BRE

BITEREARRENR -

The chairman should encourage
directors with different views
to voice their concerns, allow
sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensure that board
decisions fairly reflect board
consensus.
FRESBETRE iﬁ’]i?ﬁ
&

The Chairman meets with the Directors regularly to discuss various
matters of the Group and encourages the Directors to express their
views concerning the management of the Group.
FTREEEFTRGERNTRASETRAHBNEERSKEBAEE
EREHEEEEAEENER -

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
A.2.7 | The chairman should at least annually C e The Chairman keeps open dialogue with individual independent
hold meetings with the independent non-executive Directors to ensure effective communication. In
non-executive directors without the addition to regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met
presence of other directors. with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
FTREELDTGFHRBIIENTESTR of the other Directors on 26 August 2021 and 10 December 2021.
T—RABEEMEZHRENGE © TR EERE S IENITE SRR EARRE RS - B
EFEerHesi) EFSIFEBUIRTEEN _T_—F
NAZ+RBRER-_ZE-_—F+_A+tHETETNEBEENE
MTRITEE -
A.2.8 |The chairman should ensure that C e The Company provides updated information of the Group to

appropriate steps are taken to
provide effective communication with
shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the board as a
whole.

T EERRRIES PRARFFERR
BRHHE  ARBRIRRER A FE
BBEESE -

all shareholders when it becomes available and appropriate,
through the publication of interim and annual reports, circulars,
notices, media releases or other means in compliance with
the legal and regulatory requirements. The Company has
made such information available on the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) as well as on an independent website
provider (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas). The purpose
is to provide our shareholders an alternative channel to access the
Group’s information easily and reach the potential shareholders
globally.

RRTBHMAARRBHEAEE ST ER - WELZSEER
ZERBERIR P HRE RFR - B BE  EEBMNEST
FEREERENEMER c ARAIEKZEER FHREARF]
BI 4 35 (http://www.singamas.com) + [&] B 77 b & 7 —J8 37 48 0 it
JE 7 (http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/singamas) * It B #2755k
HEIMGCEERRER UM TFRARENEN L EFREES
HROBERR o

Apart from providing a forum for Directors’ dialogue with
shareholders in the Company’s general meetings during the year,
the Company continuously enhances shareholders’ communications
by holding press and/or analyst conferences during any reporting
period or year. In addition, the Company has a “Frequently Asked
Questions” section in its annual report providing its shareholders
with more clear and concise information that may be of common
concern. Besides, the Company has responded to letters and
telephone enquiries from shareholders and potential shareholders
throughout the year under review.

REBFAN  RERARFREAS FRHE—(ARFEEELYEN
TR ARFEFERRERFBEBNR S  WEAMEBAESK
FEEER  ARANBERTEER SHMEEEH o 1 - K
NAIBERFHRARE—MIBE I EB M - FUAIRH B IF M M ERE W
HEMTIERGERR - 550 KARREBFATAERESE
OB R S BFE IR B R N RN B 5B 7 ©

Procedures for shareholders to convene a general meeting
Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders of the Company having a right to vote at general
meetings can deposit a written request at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83
King’s Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Company Secretary. The written request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the
meeting, signed by the shareholders concerned and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
those shareholders.

RREBERRAGZER
RIREREFHETDRE%M AR A2 EIRRFRENRER - 718
EHBEREEARANEMMPER - BEREB75-83RH AL
RAE1912 - IREFALNAIWER - ZEEHRKARL G ZE L1
BEEEHN—RILEE  THERBEBRRZEZNLAIHZHERX
HEK - BRI R Ell— B FIRREE -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 | FEKX R (E) PEERER
A28 e Procedures for putting forward proposals at Annual General
(cont’d) Meeting (“AGM”)

()

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all shareholders having at the date of the request the right to vote
at the AGM; or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the
Company who have a right to vote at the resolution of the AGM can
submit a written request to move a resolution at the AGM. The written
request must state the resolution, signed by all the shareholders
concerned and may consist of several documents in like form
(which between them contain the signatures of all the shareholders
concerned). The written request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP
Tower, 75-83 King’s Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the
Company, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting to which it relates or if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting. Shareholders holding not
less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
a relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote, may request the Company to circulate, to
shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting, a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
(@) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at
that meeting, or (b) other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request must be deposited at 19/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s
Road, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company, identify
the statement to be circulated, signed by all the shareholders
concerned and be received by the Company not less than seven
days before the meeting to which it relates.
RBRRAFASE(RREFAENRERBEZERF
INTALAIMARRRREBEARKAERRBFERG FBZRE
R AEZmKERENBBMBAYAIRRREAFRG FXRR - B
TNORFBRFEBRRIERN2.5% @ KT D505 1FH AR AHE
FAZORBAER - ZEEBARARMZRER > BASEAREK
REZERAA yf‘*ﬁﬂYﬂiﬁﬁﬁ(éﬁzﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%muﬁ K
E)  ZEHEmRATEARANGEMMPERE - FHELSE75-83
SRS HRAE19E - REFRARMEN - WHETDRAE
K2 BRRBFERNGRITZANEBMAS(NRE) BEERRAFAE
BACREEZFK BETOREBHEEREEZMBEREZ
HMIOREN2.5% 3 AP RE0EFE AR EMEARORENRE A
ESRARN R MBRKEIRRA GBS 2 RFEM—HT 251,000
FRRME  ATERN@QBFEZRREAEG FEEBHERIELHN
RBAIAMET i) EMAFEZRRAE FRENER - It
BERBFELRR Tzuzﬂ%ﬁf%}%%ﬁég& B75- 835)‘?% H AR
J*19$§ SIREFEM R WHEBAMBRRES - ABXR
POREAGRBITAITREERRAR]

e Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. Shareholders and the
investment community may at any time make a request for the
Company’s information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also refer to the contacts
under “Investor Relations” section in the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com) for enquiries. Shareholders have the
right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing
and sent by post to the registered office of the Company or by e-mail
to info@singamas.com for attention of the Company Secretary.
KRR

BEERMAQRRBROBEZRLRE E/%EP%J*%” AR
a'%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬂxﬁéz%ﬁ'ﬁ Hx?&?ﬁ AT A BE R Bk
ZEREBARAZERRER - ?D‘Fﬂ@?)?ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬂt
(http://www.singamas com) Hxﬁ% FRIRNKEEEE T IERE
HoMRRNEEMNESTGELESHN FMASHAEAUNTEER
el TBEFARMERBEEAAARNPERREHE

info@singamas.com °

“EZ—FFH o BRWEBEEXRERAR
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TEERBE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
A.2.9 | The chairman should promote a culture C e The Chairman promotes a culture of openness and actively

of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of non-
executive directors in particular and
ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive directors.
FREREAR  BEAmRL XL -
RESE(RHEINTER)UES
SEHANER @ WHERNAITEFHA
FMITER Z RBERFERMRR -

encourages Directors with different views to voice their opinion and
be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs so as to contribute to the
Board’s functions.

FRERERAANXE  TEBHEHBFTIREFOEFREER - U
RE2HESEESZENEY  UHEFSNBEELER -

Effective contribution of non-executive Directors and communication
between executive and non-executive Directors are achieved
through discussions in Board meetings, various Board committee
meetings and other Board activities/programmes.
RENEFEER  SESZESLRREMESSES 53
WA ARR D EBENITESNERNERM RNITE S HIFH
TEEZHRER -

should be identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the
names of directors.
NAMBEHBEFHANH A ABA
o EZSABYIERITESSMD -

A.3 Board composition
ERgEKX
Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA
The Board should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business and should include a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors so that
independent judgement can effectively be exercised.
EFSRREQFEBMABEEMS S H  KRESENBHEAE - EFETHITEFEFNTEFNESEZR
R - LABEE S BULIE L 8 7 HIET -

A.3.1 Independent non-executive directors C e The composition of the Board, by category and position of Directors

including the names of the Chairman, the executive Directors,
the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications.
EFMERBBAPERESTHARBE(BIEERE TESF - 3
MITESERBUHRTES) REESTINEK -

The Board consists of a total of eight Directors, comprising two
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. One-third of the Board are
independent non-executive Directors of which more than one have
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Details of the composition of the
Board are set out on page 21.

EEglR//\UEREAK  BEMUNTES  ZMIFPTEZR
SMUBUFATES - ZH —BEEFGXERBUIFNTES
ERHBE— BN TESEHEEEXER  HABEEN
B SEAMBERER c ERQEAKFBIENE21H -

The Company maintains on its corporate website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of Directors identifying
their roles and functions and whether they are independent non-
executive Directors.

RAREECERAIERABRAAW FRESHNEETGHES
B WHBREAEMBE  UNEREESEEIFNTES -

The Directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 21 to 27.

EEMAERNENE21EZR27TE ©
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER
A.3.2 | The company should maintain on its C e The updated list of Directors has been posted at the websites of
website and on the Stock Exchange the Company and Stock Exchange, identifying their respective roles
website an updated list of its directors and functions, and whether they are independent non-executive
identifying their role and function and Directors.
whether they are independent non- B2 EZREEEHR AR R RBRME - WHAEAGK
executive directors. g RARTIRERETEIIFNITES -
DA R B R A T
RSN ESSRERE - W e The Company has also posted on its website and the website of
FEACMBE  URTHREERS Stock Exchange the Terms of Reference of its Board Committees
NIEHITES - to enable the shareholders to understand the roles played by those
independent non-executive Directors who serve on the relevant
Board Committees.
RARMREBERABRBLEHESTEE T EQRESR
B BRRRTHBIIIRTESLTERESTSETZE SN
BFEEZAG -
A4 Appointments, re-election and removal
ZiE - EERESR
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors and plans in place for
orderly succession for appointments. All Directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.
ﬁ%$§&ﬁ$%£ﬁ~%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ%§’ﬁ%%iﬁﬁﬁ%%%%&ﬁ%°%ﬁ§$ﬁ%i@%$ﬁﬁﬁﬁi
1E o
A.4.1 | Non-executive directors should be C e According to the service agreements entered into between each of
appointed for a specific term, subject the non-executive Director or independent non-executive Director
to re-election. and the Company, the term of appointment is three years but
FMITESNEERBEEEH I subject to retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at AGM
AR EIRSR under the Articles.
BEEIEMITERABLIFATEFRARNBE L 2 RIS
EHAR=F  MHREBEZSRMBAEE  ERARAZREAFAE
FIREEAEEEE -
A.4.2 |— All directors appointed to fill a C e Under the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the

casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after
appointment.
FrEREMBRERMBEELN
EEREEXZARNERRR
KRG FEXREER -

— Every director, including those
appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three
years.
BREZ(AEAEEEHNES)
EEmmRE ZEOB=F—R-

time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every
three years but shall be eligible for re-election.

REEREMAY  REERRAFAG L ERA/AB=22—NE
EHARERT  MEREFTHEAZLE="FRRRAFRE LR
=R - BRMFEEREREE-

Under the Articles, the Board may from time to time appoint a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any such new Director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filing a
casual vacancy) or until the next following AGM of the Company (in
the case of an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for
election at the same general meeting.

BEERME BRGS0 AR ER(ESEFABRHERRS =R AER
EEGKRE c MEEF2EHEARARA T RREAE (NEEM
REZRREARBA TERREAFAG(MEEREFTEXNE) R
IF > WEBERRE—RERASG L2528 -
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2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
A4.2 e Review of the Board composition is made regularly to ensure that it
(cont’d) has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
(&) requirements of the business of the Company.
ARRIEMEHNERG ZER  BRESSHARBLAAARZE
BABERER  THER&H 2 ALK -
e The Company has published the procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director on its website.
RAHEEENATSNESTERZ2ER  EXHRERQA MM
A e
A.4.3 |- If an independent non-executive C e As at the date of this annual report, Messrs. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan

director serves more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by shareholders.
EBUEBTEFTEEED BN
F HRODEETEUNE LRE
HR A BARRERERR -

The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution
should include the reasons why
the board believes he is still
independent and should be re-
elected.
BEPfazoRBR —RIB AR X
e EHEESTERMURK/Z
BATDBELALREESE
WREA -

and Cheng Fu Kwok, David have been serving as independent
non-executive Directors of the Company for more than 9 years.
Each independent non-executive Director who was subject to
retirement by rotation was appointed by a separate resolution in the
Company’s AGM. Each independent non-executive Director who
was eligible for re-election at the AGM had made a confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
BEAFRAEY  2AGELERBBEEE - FRETARAEL
FERITEFSBBNF - RARRZBREAFKG L - BhAR
MERZBIFNTESHUBLRABRET - BURRRBEF
ANE LEEEE BN TEEHDIRRB MR EIA3MER
TE R EUB S MR R o

Since Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan was re-elected as the independent
non-executive Director of the Company in the 2021 AGM of the
Company, according to article 92 of the Articles, Mr. Lau is not
subject to retirement by rotation in the 2022 AGM.
HRBAMEEERARR ZE-_—FRFAFASREZALA
RIBVIERITESR  RRERMBAFERME  BIEEEFTR T
—FRRAFRE EWmRER o

The Company’s circular of its AGM contained detailed information
on re-election of Directors, including detailed biographies, interests
and (where appropriate) independence of all Directors standing for
re-election. If an independent non-executive Director serves more
than 9 years, the information would be included in the circular
to advice shareholders the reasons why the Board believes the
relevant Director is still independent and should be re-elected.

ARAIBRAFTASBRBEEEETNFHMEL - BREREE
BETNMEESNFARE  Bak(WMBER)BLIE - 5B
#ﬂﬁ%%&&aﬂﬂi E—TERBHEABEA - MRRIE

HEFSR/ERESDBE LA T RERESENRA -

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David will retire by rotation and his further
appointment shall be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders in the forthcoming AGM. His information
will be included in the circular of the forthcoming AGM stating the
reasons why the Board believes Mr. Cheng is still independent and
should be re-elected.
BHELENEHRRER  ERABETANE CRBEREAR
EﬁhﬁﬂikAim REREFEZEE - BEEEE P EREH
ANEERREAFRAGELAN  MRRRERHEFSRRBEEDNE
%QAi&%%E%m I
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2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
A5 Nomination Committee
REZESE
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE
In carrying out its responsibilities, the nomination committee should give adequate consideration to the principles under
Sections A.3 and A.4 in the Code.
REZEERITHBER ARxHERLEEGTREASRALRAHRE]
A.5.1- |= The company should establish a C e The Board has established the Nomination Committee on 27 March
Ab5.4 nomination committee which is 2012 for nominating potential candidates for directorship, reviewing

chaired by the chairman of the
board or an independent non-
executive director and comprises
a majority of independent non-
executive directors.
NAERIREELEESG  HES
BXRRBUENTEERETE
& BB ELE L ERITESRNG
REZH -

The nomination committee should
be established with specific written
terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.
NAEEEARREREEGAE
ORIERE AREHARED
=T o

It should perform the following
duties:

REZEQEETATEE

(@) review the structure, size
and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the board
at least annually and make
recommendations on any
proposed changes to the
board to complement the
company’s corporate strategy;
ZLOBFRIVETGNER
AB AKX (BIEREE - MH
RS E) - WM SR
AARRBMEHEESEY
MBI HER

(o) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become board
members and select or make
recommendations to the board
on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;
MeREa AR ERES
AT - WHEREEEATLT
§%§$Eﬁ¢wt@§$@%ﬂf&

the nomination of Directors, assessing the independence of each
independent non-executive Director and making recommendations
to the Board on such appointments. The full terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website
(http://www.singamas.com).
RARRER-E-——_F=A_+tHRURELEEGHEURELE
BENBEFAE BIRRELNESF IRSEBUIFNTES
WBYMELRERZERNESESIRLES - AHREZESRE
5 E K 15 558 B 78 P AU (http://www.hkexnews.hk) & 2K A &]
A9k (http://www.singamas.com).

The current members of the Nomination Committee include one
executive Director being the Chairman of the Board, namely, Mr.
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David.
REEZERRENEBRE AR TEFHEFO IR RINBAE
(ER)EMBBLIEANITES-BIP Ee E R R SE A -

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREFR REZEGIFENEFTERLIBERANES -

In 2021, the Nomination Committee met once and attendance of
individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in the year is
summarized below:

RZBZ—F REZEEEE X EEANKENLE XSG
RAAT -
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEEHRE HERE
Teo Siong Seng (Chairman) R (/&) 11
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan RIS 11
Cheng Fu Kwok, David 2% B 1/1

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties. The Nomination Committee is accountable to
the Board and minutes of meetings/resolutions are circulated to the
Board for information.
REAZEGHEHREARERUNBITERE - REEEQANE
EZRaBERERRAE IREBARRESSEM -

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
Ab.1- (c) assess the independence of e The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination
Ab.4 independent non-executive Committee during the year under review:
(cont’d) directors; and FEREEFA  REZBGNITERRAT -
(&) BN TEENE L
[ (@ made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the
(d) make recommendations to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and assessed
board on the appointment or independence of independent non-executive Directors;
re-appointment of directors AMERERHTIES AL EAREFEZTESTAES
and succession planning EREEBRAREEHE  URFARBUIIERTEST 2B
for directors, in particular 4
the chairman and the chief
executive. (b) reviewed the terms of reference of Nomination Committee;
HEEZEXEFEZEARE BAREZ BN BESE
BLERFRERITHAR)%E
FrrEmMESSREER - (c) reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board;
MAEEENEZTILBGR
— The nomination committee
should make available its terms of (d) reviewed the nomination policy; and
reference explaining its role and RETIRAEBR &
the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the (e) reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and
Stock Exchange website and the assessed the balance of skills and experience of the Board
company’s website. as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
REZESREARMPUEA requirements of the busmess of the Company.
AL FAREBESRE - MO EEENAR  BERZITL - WHHESSREME
%ﬁ@%&%%@%ﬁ%ﬁ%% ?Mﬁﬁ EBHZTIANEERBINRARANERE
— The company should provide e The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy effective from 1

the nomination committee
sufficient resources to perform
its duties. Where necessary, the
nomination committee should seek
independent professional advice,
at the company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities.

RAEMREZZESRERTEE
BABTERE - REZEER
THRERNERE  ESRKEY

EXER  BRAA/RXNM -

September 2013 (“Board Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board, details of which are summarised
as follows:

ETEE_T —FNLA BERMEFEXELTCER &

FIEEGRETKE S LM RRA T EFFBH

(@

LanT

In considering the Board’s composition, a wider range of
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service will be duly considered in the
selechon of candidates.

BREAKZBESSNAERK  UEZESGHTEEE
Jf BREERBERMER - Fie - Xft&%ﬁz’“bﬁ BEER
5 - BE - MBAREFR o

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria.
FIEEENZEBUBART RRE - WARBIREE ERK
BEA o

To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy, the
Nomination Committee will review and discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

%%%§%@H%T\%*ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ‘fﬁﬁ%% VIEET - DARE(R
BN BETEBRRITZAN  TRAZSGEHA LML

EfRZFER] °
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Ab.1- e The Board has also adopted a nomination policy effective from
Ab.4 26 March 2019 (“Nomination Policy”) setting out the criteria and
(cont’d) procedures when considering candidates to be appointed and re-
(&) appointed as Directors.

Exea T NAF="A_+NBETSRMEZRE - &R
ERFEBANZERBNZERESTH ZEARERF

Nomination criteria
RELER

All new appointments and re-appointments of Directors are based
on the following criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:
FIEEENNZERENZERATERFTHIREAZSEE

() Lnﬁegrity

(b) Independent mindedness
BUIMER

(c) Possession of core competencies that meet the current needs
of the Company and the ability to complement the skills and
competencies of the existing Directors
BEZEEABIFEARARKEE  THAREEESEY
GG

(d) Readiness to commit time and effort to carry out duties and
responsibilities effectively )
FAERERERES - WA B EERS KBS

(e) A good track record of experience at a senior level in
corporations/organisations__
ERA/MBEHEHNEESREREENBERIFAR

() Financial knowledge

BBV LNER

These criteria are for reference and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any
person, as it considers appropriate.

LEHRIHE2E  WAREREMERER b NERFEMEIER - 18
LEEBEATREAMERRBEENAL

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER

Ab.1- Nomination procedures

A5.4 RAERF

(cont’d)

(B) The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting

of the Nomination Committee for consideration of a proposed
candidate by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it
to consider and make recommendations to the shareholders for
election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies or as additional Directors. Proposed candidates
will be asked to submit the necessary personal information in
relation to the candidates as required in Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary. In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting,
a circular will be sent to shareholders. The names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as required
pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to shareholders.
According to the Articles, the shareholders may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set out in
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting,
Put Forward Proposals at Annual General Meeting and Propose a
Person for Election as a Director” of the Company and available on
the website of the Company.
REZEQMEROMRRZE SR IREZESERIEEN
REA - RELZEGAMNESTRAEEAE  UHEZGER
RrARFEBRNREAG LIBETAES  HESSLZARES
MIERRRZRAERTTIBREE - B3 ABHSWERIERIRE
LETRANE1B51QGEANET 2 BERIEEAFMROEAER - 24
ZEGUNRRBLE  JUERGFREARMHBINER R - A
REGHAEE=SREEREAG F2ENREAER - KQF
S RARR LA - P HREANMS  EF(BEEERIEH
Kh) - B 2R REMRBERREE - RARRAIE
HRBEx TREBHER - RBSERZMA - REINAREDE
BEEMAZE  BEABHIINARANRREBAKREARE - Rk
REAFASRLZEZRIERENALTZ2BEZ 2 ER)AN - WEE
97 /N E i
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A.5.5 | Where the board proposes a resolution C e Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David will stand for re-election as the
to elect an individual as an independent independent non-executive Director of the Company in the
non-executive director at the general forthcoming AGM of the Company according to article 92 and 92A
meeting, it should set out in the circular of the Articles.
to shareholders and/or explanatory LRRERMAIFE2KI2AM » BiEHE L £ N AR A EEKEE
statement accompanying the notice of FRAEERETARAIBULIENTES -
the relevant general meeting:—
RESERNARIASLREERER The Company’s circular of AGM set out the information in
BEEEALTABIIIFNTES §H considering the re-election of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, having
A% 3K & i & F7 B8 BT 89 BUIR SR A8 K due regard to the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy and
K/ sk - fERRAIR ;- assessment of Mr. Cheng’s independence.
AATRREAFAGBHEHEEREZDHRH ST ENHEA - TH
1. the process used for identifying HEERRABEREFENES TIBEURTHBEEZE
the individual and why the Board S o
believes the individual should be
elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be
independent;
AAmEZAALHRE  EF
ERAEBMEZEALTHIEAL
RMMRRzE ALTEELAL
WERE
2. if the proposed independent non-
executive director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed
company directorship, why the
board believes the individual would
still be able to devote sufficient
time to the board;
MREEBIIFRTES KT
BLREMUN L) ETARINES -
EEZERREZAALTIHARAR
HSHBITESEEINREA
3. the perspectives, skills and
experience that the individual can
bring to the board; and
ZENTAIRESE B RN EE
HAT  RERER R
4. how the individual contributes to
diversity of the board.
ZANTHAREEEEKRES
Tk e
A.6 Responsibilities of directors

BEEXHME

Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA

Every Director must always know his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and its conduct, business activities and

development.

BREFARAEREFERARTEZNRE  URARNKENN  XHEHRER -

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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A.6.1 Every newly appointed director C e On appointment, new Directors are given a comprehensive
of the company should receive briefing and related materials of the Group’s business activities,
a comprehensive, formal and induction into their responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory
tailored induction on appointment. requirements.
Subsequently he should receive any FESRZTRSES EXEERREHEEN  EREELEE
briefing and professional development ¥BEN EFERARBHEN  REMEEEK -
necessary to ensure that he has
a proper understanding of the e All Directors, including non-executive Directors, are regularly
company’s operations and business provided with comprehensive reports on the management’s
and is fully aware of his responsibilities strategic plans, updates on lines of business, financial information,
under statute and common law, the etc.
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory FBESBEFRTES) e TR EERHERBETRENEZE
requirements and the company’s L ERENERER - MBERS -
business and governance policies.
BEHMEZEANESHREXZARE e The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
S2HE - EXARFAEMBEMNRES updated on Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
M EBNEESITEONAREE requirements.
B - ARRMPIE R RIREERE RAWMEBERRAAZEETIIS A LR REMETE ERKH
BEBHEENIRE  URTE2MER RIEH -
SIEERRERE - LKA AR
REMEERTEARANFNEBRE
BBGR TR -

A.6.2 |The functions of non-executive C e Non-executive Directors are well aware of their functions and have

directors include:
EMITESO BRI

— bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct at board

meetings;

DEEREEH TP REK -
BE - pEaxRE BHEME &
B EEZERBRTEAEEH
Lt RHEBINER

— take the lead on potential conflicts
of interests arise;
EHRBEN R EREBEERR
SI8ER

— serve on the audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance
committees, if invited; and
ERHEEREZES FMEE
g REZEERHEMERZE

gNE &

— scrutinise the company’s
performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring performance
reporting.
FHBEQRNRE D EDR
EHMEEBBEMBE R  WERE
BAFPRRNEH -

been actively performing them. On an on-going basis, Directors
review with management in respect of the Group’s strategic
development and direction, emerging risks and opportunities
available to the Group.

FRTERSREANBEEANBELBRETERE EFEE
BEARENEEECAEENREBR LT M - URAKEET]
BEHIRMER R E o
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A.6.3 | Every director should ensure that he C e There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings during the year.
can give sufficient time and attention to Please refer to A.1.1 above for the attendance records.
the company’s affairs and should not FREZESEERZHEEXRSARE - HERHFR E3CEAAA
accept the appointment if he cannot I8 o
do so.
BREFEEREMN D EHEMRE e Al Directors have in-depth industry knowledge and established track
BUAREBEARMNSER - TAITEES record, whose interests are aligned with that of the Company. Every
ZAE Director has given sufficient time and attention to the Company’s
affairs. The independent non-executive Directors have brought
a wide spectrum of their extensive knowledge and experience in
their respective business undertakings to the Board for the fullest
performance of its functions.
TRESHEFHEAENTEMNBREBINTERLEE  BENF
RERRNANNE N - BREFEEHAR A 2 BB 2 Mk
FRER - BUIFRTEEMABNREZEEBHENEZL
EAHERES  BRHEESTEBITHEBE -
A.6.4 |Board should establish written C e The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees.
EERERAHEERTEEES
ol NBEZ TR EFRIRSR -

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions.

ROFIEEHRM ETARAMEE TSN EHETAZTFHETES
gi%E@T}%EE?E'J(H%EE?EJJJ)%Kﬁﬂ?ﬁ%$%%§%§%ﬁi%?
/\‘ °©

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all of the Directors
have complied with, for any part of the accounting period covered
by this report, the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
RRARMMBERELEEERE  MESFEAREMBEZ
SEHEIR 2 AT - B R SFIRESPRIATAR E R SFA o

Written guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code relating
to securities transactions for relevant employees are set out in the
“Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees” of the
Company.

2 BARMRE »
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A.6.5 |All directors should participate in C e As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Directors
continuous professional development are updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing
to develop and refresh their knowledge Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
and skills. This is to ensure that their time to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors. All Directors
contribution to the board remains are encouraged to attend external forums or training courses on
informed and relevant. The company relevant topics which may count towards continuous professional
should be responsible for arranging development training.
and funding suitable training, placing EREESRHERIIZ—5Hh  EFETRHREFEB LEMARAKR
an appropriate emphasis on the EMEREERT I ERER  WBR2BESETERN
roles, functions and duties of a listed E o RARNAEBEBESHFEIINABRNREARE 2 BAZHHFI
company director. AR ERREREEREI S o
FIEESEEL2EBESERR ¥R
W H A R - AR EEE e Pursuant to the Code, Directors should participate in continuous
FEAE2AEBARINEMENERLT professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
HEEZSELER - AREAERH and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
AEMBILIREEEALE - URE remains informed and relevant. For the year ended 31 December
PYEELIMRAREENAEC - Biat 2021, all Directors namely, Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Ms. Chung Pui
BfE - King, Rebecca, Mr. Tan Chor Kee, Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, Mr. Chan
Kwok Leung, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan
and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong had confirmed that they had complied
with the code provision A.6.5 of the Code during the year ended
31 December 2021 by participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending training
courses or by reading materials relevant to the Company’s business
or to the Directors duties and responsibilities.
BEFE ERREDEBSEFTERR  UABRIEFHEMB R
Bt UWRRHEETCAFEZEHAARIEMENERATHESS
EEBR - BE-—ZT-—F+-A=1t—RHItFE 2BEZHE
BRNELRE  EMRAL LT - REBESLE FEELE - RER
Sed - MEE AL - BRI RAEE LK ENRR - BRALE
BIRIZS M EE AN R SR EERAERBEHBEERETN
2HESGE FHETEERIFIEH D EIETR 2 FRREALS
RZFRE °
A.6.6 |Each director should disclose to C e The Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of their

the company at the time of his
appointment, and in a timely manner
for any change, the number and nature
of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant
commitments. The identity of the public
companies or organisations and an
indication of the time involved should
also be disclosed. The board should
determine for itself how frequently this
disclosure should be made.

BREFERNEXZERR R RIRE
ERARARABEERLAEE
RMEAREMERNFE - HEEF
Ef] ZEYFE R FHREE o LN E I ER
B8 e 89 2 322 @) s 4B A8 B 44 8 DA I
BTRHEEABBEHS RAORRE -
%%@Wé@ﬁﬁ&ﬁ*ﬁl‘%%%’ﬁﬁﬂk

B

appointment and at least once a year thereafter the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments, identifying the public companies or
organisations involved.
EEREXZERERARAABREWRERBFEL—RHER
NBAAINAABEEBALOEE RME - R E A S RRE -
REZE AR QB MR BT -

=4
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A.6.7 |Independent non-executive directors C There is satisfactory attendance at Board meetings, Board
and other non-executive directors, as Committee meetings, the meetings between the Chairman and the
equal board members, should give the independent non-executive Directors and the general meetings
board and any committees on which during the year. Please refer to A.1.1, A.2.7, A.5.1-5.4,B.1.2, C.3.1
they serve the benefit of their skills, and E.1.2 for details.
expertise and varied backgrounds FREEELLR  ESCETZESSH  TREBUIEHT
and qualifications through regular BEESHEMBRASZHBERHESARE - FFBRL2MEA11
attendance and active participation. A2.7 - Ab51-54.-B1.2 - C.3.1%E1.218 °
Generally, they should also attend
general meetings to gain and develop a Extent of participation and contribution should be viewed both
balanced understanding of the views of quantltatwely and qualitatively.
shareholders. 2ESERELEMNEEREEBEREEMH EETT
BYIERTEEREMIERITEEIE
AREEMESRARSHUNESS All non-executive Directors attended the AGM held on 18 June
KE EEHEFESg REREDY 2021 and the general meetings respectively held on 30 July 2021
EFLEEERENEZEGNERLIER and 10 December 2021,
g% AEE  ZEMFRT FIEFRITESHHRE T —F A+ N\BARITHREAFK
AR REBELHER ML E ERANIR - E - —FLtA=TRAR-ZE=-_—F+-ATH&EH
EERRARE  HARKRRNERE B AE -
RNIEHTHE
A.6.8 |Independent non-executive directors C Please refer to A.6.7 above.
and other non-executive directors F2M EXEA6TIE -
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and
informed comments.
BUEMITEEREAMIENITESA
FRRMHBY FERZMERARED
BRYERNAIHERE RBEELER
L
A7 Supply of and access to information
BRHR M R A
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information in the form and quality to enable them to make
an informed deC|S|on and perform their duties and respon3|blllties.
%%%%hf WERER  EFRARZEAFESFHRNTEREAERNBERTIELRE  TEBTEBRERE
A.7.1 Send agenda and full board papers C Board/Board Committee papers are circulated not less than three

to all directors at least 3 days before
regular board or board committee

meetings.
E=xgresnsEMEREgEX
fiﬁ%%%ﬁ&ﬁ¢kx%’§%§$ NI
ERTEFGNAETZESEER
HIE =RATAH o

working days before the regular Board/Board Committee meetings
to enable the Directors/Board Committee members to make
informed decisions on matters to be raised at the Board/Board
Committee meetings.

?%%1%%$/E$§T§E@WEE&%$@/&$§T§ S@est

RHEZHAWERZERD EMLM’EHM%E' E.E;xX1¢iﬁE"§$
B/ HETZE S EHeRARN TN ZEERARRES

HETZEEKE -

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER

A.7.2 |- Management has an obligation C e The Company Secretary who is also the Chief Financial Officer
to supply the board and its of the Company attends all regular Board meetings to advise on
committees with adequate and corporate governance, statutory compliance, and accounting and
reliable information in a timely financial matters, as appropriate.
manner to enable it to make ARRZARMERERVBBELNEMEESSEHSE U
informed decisions. MEEES KIEERSHENBEEEENESZRHEER (M
EREBEEXRNESERAET BE).

ZEGRHAILAENERE

B AT ESENTEEEFEE e The Directors have separate and independent access to the

BB R TELIRE - Company’s senior management to keep themselves abreast of
business activities, financial performance, internal audit and internal

- The board and individual control progress in the Group.

directors should have separate BENATRBYMERARARNSREREAR  USHEETHE

and independent access to the AEENEBEE  BHERE  RPBEZRAPEITER -

company’s senior management

for making further enquiries where

necessary.

EEghENESFREATER

DRl MERABNBELRE -

NERFEBIEE—FEH -

A.7.3 |~ All directors are entitled to have C e Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by
access to board papers and Directors and committee members. Senior management of the
related materials. Company has taken appropriate steps to respond promptly and
FEESHEREHESS XK fully to any queries raised by Directors.

RAEBEH - EERLZEGRENEHNEFEXNHREHLE  c BEERIRED
B SREEBASSRIEE FPBRARRIELZEACIE -
— Queries raised by directors should
receive a prompt and full response,
if possible.
HREZRHOHEBE  RANAE
R AR MR K 2 TH 8 Bl fE o
B REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD EVALUATION
EEREREBABNFHRESSTZ
B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure
S 2 35 BB MO OK T R 2B AR
Corporate Governance Principle
REERRA
The Company should disclose its Director’s remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters. The procedure
for setting policy on executive Directors’ remuneration and all Directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent.
NAERBEEEEME B REMEGMIEENEE  BREERAMAERENEF - UHETEBRRTESMe K28
EEFWTBOBER
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER
B.1.1 | The remuneration committee should C e The Remuneration Committee has consulted the Chairman about
consult the chairman and/or chief proposals relating to the remuneration packages and other human
executive about their remuneration resources issues of the Directors and senior management, including
proposals for other executive but not limited to succession plan and key personnel movements as
directors and should have access to well as policies for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel.
independent professional advice if FTHNEESERES R REEABCZTHERREMANER
necessary. FRE(BEETRNEETE  EZEASEE - URBEREZS
HNE B 2t H 01T E B A BRATBR)EAEFENER -
BREBATERHITHES - 0F
FE FHEESRESKEBIEHE e The emoluments of Directors and senior management have been
B2R o determined with reference to the skills, knowledge, involvement in
the Company’s affairs and their individual performance, and to the
profitability of the Company and prevailing market conditions during
the year.
ARRAZEEREREEAEMSERBEMNAC A HE - 23H
KFRBERRNBEHZRBERKER  WR2REFANRARZ&EF
AR TISRIEMERE -
B.1.2 | The remuneration committee’s terms C e The Board has established Remuneration Committee to make

of reference should include:

FHREeERARE N HERE

— recommend to the board on the
company’s policy and structure
for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and
on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
HAREERSREEABNS
BE RTINS SR R R4 - RBLER N IE
M B B A 2 I 5T % B R
R MEBEFROES

- review and approve the
management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
HEEFEMAICENHRAER
@*ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁt;&%ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂ%

A

— either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, or to make
recommendations to the board
on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and
senior management;
INTREz— BEEEZEHEX
- BEEMNBTEERSRK
BAEBMFHHGFS  kmMES

ZERATEERBRER
BEEBSSE

g
> IR IR m

recommendations on the Company’s remuneration policy and

structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management.

No Director and senior management can determine his own

remuneration.

EEEERUTMEEGHEUREHARAEERARERASR

Tﬁ%gﬁ%&%&%i%% cEENEREEAEMTEEEHE
SE=37

The current members of the Remuneration Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok,
David (Chairman) and Mr. Lau Ho Kit, lvan and a non-executive
Director, namely, Mr. Tan Chor Kee.
FNEEGREKNEREMELIFNTES - 2R AEEHE L
F(ER)RBIFTEHEE  AR—(IIFRITES-HRBELE -

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports the findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
BREFR FTHRESTFENESTSERLHER FEE -

In 2021, the Remuneration Committee met once and attendance of
individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in the year
is summarised below:

RZBZ—F FHEESSHE X FTHZESEKNEND
fEREERAT :
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEEHRE HERE
Cheng Fu Kwok, David EREHEY (/%) 1/1
(Chairman)
Tan Chor Kee PR 28 H 1/1
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan RIS 11

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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TEERBE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
B.1.2 — recommend to the board on the e The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
(cont’d) remuneration of non-executive to discharge its duties. The Remuneration Committee is accountable

(&)

directors;
RIERTESHNTFHMEZSIR
M

consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;
ZRERDRANOEFM - AN
HHRERBEARSEERE M
AL B0 1R PR IR 1

review and approve compensation
payable on loss or termination of
office or appointment;
&Y K BE A B B2 2K Bl A% I B S ok
ZEMBAZEEEE

review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of directors for
misconduct; and

mE RBUEEE BT RKE MR
EXkRBEBEBMESMIRAEE
ZhE &

ensure that no director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.
MREME S EEMBEAT
1S HEETEHASTHHH -

to the Board and minutes of meetings are circulated to the Board
for information.
HFNEEGUERMARERUBITARE - FNEEGARE
EERENESRLRARIESSEN -

The following is a summary of the work of the Remuneration
Committee during the year under review:

EOESEA  FMEZE SN TERAMT

(@) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s Directors’ fees for the financial year of 2021;
%@:2:—@%&@&2%%@@&@%%@%&ﬁ%m
2

(b) reviewed and approved the salary adjustment of the Company’s
executive Directors and senior management staff;

EHRMEARRNTEERSDREEABNFIFE

(c) reviewed and approved gratuity granted to retired senior
management; and

FHRAERARSREBASHLNMES BN &

(d) reviewed and approved the Company’s annual performance-
based bonus policy.

EFRPEARRRIRFERE 2 B PR -

The Remuneration Committee is delegated to be responsible for
determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors and to consider
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.
FNEESEMTE o ERGEN  AAEBETEEMNPITEERS
REBABNFMNGTE  BEFESENG  RASEMNEEES
H(RERALRIEBBREENEE) - W IERITE A HM
MEFSRHEZARZERENARMIAOETH - B HOE
il R BB 3 A e = B 7 L b BB 7 1) 1 R AR 1 o

Details of each Director’s remuneration and any remuneration
payable to members of senior management for the year under
review are set out on pages 218 to 221 and page 307 of this annual
report. \
REEER  ERSEEERAMASNTEEERASKED
N BEHARAFRE2ISEEF221H KFEI07E °
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
B.1.3 | The remuneration committee should C e The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
make available its terms of reference, on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
explaining its role and the authority FTNEZE e BEHED EHNAR R KB
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange e The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
website and the Company’s website. include making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
FMNE B2 EALBR AL KA RS policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and the senior
55 FABE BEHE BEEACKR management, and determining with delegated responsibility, the
ZE%%@@&E"U%% remuneration packages of all executive Directors and the senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives of the Board resolved from time to
time.
FNEZE e T EREOERALRESREREEABZHM
ﬁ%&%%ﬁ%$@¢ﬁ@%'1%%§$A7Mm%g¢%9
BEAH  HEERTENEAET SBEERTESRSRER
ABWHMEFS  UMIERTEENHFHAESTSREER -
B.1.4 | The remuneration committee should C e The Human Resources Department provides administrative support
be provided with sufficient resources to and implements the approved remuneration packages and other
pen‘orm its duties. human resources related decisions approved by the Remuneration
TNEEERERATEERAREIT Committee. The Remuneration Committee also has access to
Eﬂi,\ independent advice at the Company’s expense if considered
necessary. B
Aﬁﬁﬁ%%é%ﬁﬁﬁi%&ﬁﬁ%%M%Eﬁﬁﬁz Mﬁ
BREMADEREBRE - FHEEGTANEARSERTER
SRBFUFEER  BABARREXA -
B.1.5 | The company should disclose details of C e Please refer to notes 14 and 50 in the Notes to Financial Statements
any remuneration payable to members for details of the remuneration payable to the senior management.
of senior management by band in the BHASRERAFN 2 ER2MMBIRERMTE14 %50 -
annual reports.
AAEEHERANRFTMEREES
RERANBBBIE IS -
C ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
& R
CA1 Financial reporting
B T4 P ¥R
Corporate Governance Principle
BEESBRA
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects.
EEQRTY  BEMREEMTZARNKE  BAKATR °
C.1.1 | Management should provide sufficient C e Directors are provided with a review of the Group’s major business
explanation and information to the activities and key financial information on a quarterly basis in each
board to enable it to make an informed board meeting.
assessment of financial and other EENERESeeRIEREESESE I XK EHEER
information put before it for approval. FENPHER -
ﬁﬁ@%ﬁ%%@%ﬁﬁ Y 7 12 Ko
BH - EEFS A AR GM AR
R REMER - ERBRED
AT e
C.1.2 |Management should provide all C e Monthly updates have been provided to all members of the Board,

members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable
the board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties.

ai@ﬁﬁtﬂ ﬁé% B B 1R it B X
CMAIEREATMRE - BER

TREAIE &%EAE%E’JM&

NBEERITABRE -

S S my
U>}>\<F'_\_

for the purpose of providing a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in sufficient detail and to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.
%Aﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘/ﬂzsﬂﬁiﬂ%ﬂ FHER - AR BEALRR AR
- MBRARAIRNAERIRER ZTE  LWBEEEERE
%%Eﬂﬁﬂ*ﬂza °

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
C.1.3 |— The directors should acknowledge C e All Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for overseeing
in the Corporate Governance the preparation of financial statements of each financial period,
Report their responsibility for which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
preparing the accounts. and of the results and cashflow for the year.
ERRELEEOWME P ARM TREEARBREFEERYEGEVRHM M BRENEE -
MERUKRENEE - WEEBRARMRMFAREENTBAMR - UREERRS
MEBER

— There should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting e In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
responsibilities in the auditor’s December 2021, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
report on the financial statements. policies and applied them consistently, adopted all applicable Hong
AT E T BB IS R R A Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are in conformity to
HENRE P H A R RE M the International Financial Reporting Standards, made judgments
e o and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared the

accounts on the going concern basis.

—  Unless it is inappropriate to assume EREHE-_TS-_—F+_A=-1+—HLEFEZUBRERE &
that the company will continue EEERMKEASENSECR YE2HARABBMBREE
in business, the directors should Al - A BRI REXER - I BBIEA IR IEL — ) H B &
prepare the accounts on a going Est BENREEUARRREBELE BERM -
concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as e With the assistance of the Company’s Finance Department which
necessary. is under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer who is a
BRIEBRARBSHELEER professional accountant, the Directors ensure the preparation of the
WAHEE  BR - EFBRENE financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
BEUNARBESEAER - A requirements and applicable accounting standards.
FTEREFEREHUBRBRIXREE RARMBHAEAREXEGHMER  AEMBREEE - E&T
R F'Wﬁﬁgéﬁ EERREENBRERNEENSERERRERZ

AR -

— Where the directors are aware
of material uncertainties relating e The Directors also ensure the publication of the financial statements
to events or conditions that may of the Group is in a timely manner.
cast significant doubt on the EEWRERE B S WKRER T UAFIE -
company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, they should be e The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
clearly and prominently disclosed reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
and discussed at length in the set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 102 to 110 of
Corporate Governance Report. this annual report.

CEEFNBEREARTHAASE ML RNARVZEENF 5 B I | KR PIIE 2 BB EEA NI F]R

BRI EREZENRFER F102EEFE 1108 2 B ZHBAMRER o

EHRE N EERECEB LR

EERHEERBERFATRLE e The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may

THAEZ - cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
EEWTANBEAREARBNBEL SR NEREREBNE
fAIERTAREE -

C.1.4 |The directors should include in the C e The Board has included in the Chairman’s Statement a discussion

separate statement containing a
discussion and analysis of the group’s
performance in the annual report, an
explanation of the basis on which the
company generates or preserves value
over the longer term (the business
model) and the strategy for delivering
the company’s objectives.
EEREFHRANRROTEBRR
BB AR - MBAARSEREES
FREBEENER (EBENX)RER
RAPTL B IR KRG o

and analysis of the Group’s sustainable development strategy on
pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.
EEGENLFRECEZF1BEZIFEREIARFTHREOITE
B AT #5485 R SR B VB8 L At
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER

C.1.5 | The board should present a balanced, C e The Board aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
clear and understandable assessment assessment of the Group’s performance and position in all
in annual and interim reports, and other shareholder communications.
financial disclosures required by the EEEXMARFEAT - HERZRERRRIELEMH - T
Listing Rules. It should also do so for RS RIERETE o
reports to regulators and information
disclosed under statutory requirements. e The Board is aware of and updated with the statutory requirements
THESCREFERS KT HRE under the applicable rules and regulations. The Board aims to
DRE EMARREETHEEZENEM present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
BRI WARRBEIEN T - Group’s position and prospects. The Company Secretary and key
B R A HIREAFTE o 1o - EHIP officers of the Company Secretarial Department work closely and
EEMEEERINMES RIBEE in consultation with legal advisers to review the materiality and
Bl 38 & % 5 19 & B A 1E B R B A BR sensitivity of transactions and proposed transactions and advise the
U Board accordmg

EEgAENRE ;‘E%ﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁ R MR P2 EFZR §$%‘§&j}%
SFEBMMSNIERNAEER R EATSNFE - AAWER
NAMEREE A B % EE %??/\f’ﬁ .3 %%IE&X%%
BNEEMRBRREAAEER  LHLAE %Aﬁﬁj@m ®

C.2 Risk management and internal control
[\ ez i TR % ) B B 4
Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA
The board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the issuer’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the issuer establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The board should oversee management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems, and management should provide a confirmation to the
board on the effectiveness of these systems.
ﬁ%ﬁﬁi.ﬁrﬁ&?ﬂmﬁﬁ}\uﬂzﬁvﬁ IR PITRA 5 2 AR O FEL \ét"é&%‘fr WHER B TT NSRS AR & i R B R E
REELRANTELRZS - EEeREEEEBHAREERADELRRMORE - aﬁm&%ﬁ? CMERERANEEGIE
1%@@1%;%@@7&9@5&;@ °

C.2.1 |The board should oversee the C e Please refertoC23andC24belowforthedetails.

Company’s risk management and HMFEL2E T XEC23K%C.2.478
internal control systems on an ongoing
basis, ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and
its subsidiaries’ risk management and
internal control systems has been
conducted at least annually and report
to shareholders that it has done so
in its Corporate Governance Report.
The review should cover all material
controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls.
%%ﬁﬂg ii‘“’ﬁtﬂ“TE’Jﬂ BER
N EBELE R i Iﬁﬁf%ﬁf’“tikﬁ
—RAA &ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬂ’ﬁkﬁa e 2N
NEPEIERFE R AR WEREE
YRR H (A AR R PE IR E S ST AR B IR
o BEmREREMEE 2R
FHE - BEMBEE - EEEERE
REE -

C.2.2 |The board’s annual review should, C e The Board has conducted annual review on the adequacy of
in particular, ensure the adequacy resources, qualifications and experience of the Company’s
of resources, staff qualifications and accounting, internal audit and financial reporting staff as well as their
experience, training programmes and training programmes and budget and considers as adequate
budget of the company’s accounting, é%AE MARAEGE  AXEZRVBERNETIRER - &
internal audit and financial reporting Z«‘%ﬁﬁﬁmgﬂ% IR EBTITHEZREIREREAESR
function. XzEé TR ETFERIRN  WRBERH -
EERETFERIR  BERD
gt > NEEZ LI E%&H&é 75
ENER BTIAFEREH KRB
ég EXMBIIREREBELERS

A o

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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TtEERRSE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX fR(E) PEERER
C.2.3 |The board’s annual review should, in C e For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board, with the

particular, consider:

EZeFRANEHEERIE

EEN

(IE=2

(@)

the changes, since the last
annual review, in the nature and
extent of significant risks, and the
Company’s ability to respond to
changes in its business and the
external environment;

BLFRIE  BREBRKMEE
MEEREOEE - AN AT E

NHERBS R EREBE D

EEVANE

the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control
systems, and where applicable, the
work of its internal audit function
and other assurance providers;
EEERBLERRER &AL
FHENITESEREE - k(@
FA) AR 2 12 Th B J B R 75 B 4
HBIE:

the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring
results to the board (or board
committee(s)) which enables it to
assess control of the issuer and the
effectiveness of risk management;

MEFS(HETZEE)EEE
REREFREE RRE %E

DEERTRBTANEER
NMEBRERNARIZE

significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been
identified during the period. Also,
the extent to which they have
resulted in unforeseen outcomes
or contingencies that have had,
could have had, or may in the
future have, a material impact on
the issuer’s financial performance
or condition; and
HNEENBREERRKER
EREEIESHIE - LRE B
AREEERWERIEZ B E
BRE MZEERABELLE
ﬁA%M%%ﬁW%REFE~
AR EEN SR EEEED
BAXE R

the effectiveness of the Company’s
processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rule compliance.
NEIBBETBRE REFCETR
H‘Dﬁimﬁ'ﬁ&ﬁ% SB R o

assistance of the Audit Committee, the Group’s Internal Audit
Function, the Enterprise Risk Management Committee and the
management, has conducted regular review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls systems, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management systems
and no irregularity or material weakness was noted within any
function or process. The Board considers the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate for the Group
as a whole. The Board further considers that there was no material
issue relating to the controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group.
Please refer to C.2.4 below for the details.
HE_Z-_—F+_A=+—HIFERN " EEREZET L&
EREEZBE  CERREEZESREEENHYT - EF
SETHRIANEEANREERG(RENE - LERESRET)
R EIR R B - WAREBEREMBEBEBERBE 2
BRHEBARK - EEFRA - Ak A@&W%%T%Lﬂ$%l
BRMEBEUNTR - BESWRE - AEBEER -
BB R E g aﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂikﬁiﬁﬁo$%
ﬂ,ﬁTX%Czwﬁ
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 | FEKX fR(E) PEERER
C.2.4 |The Company should disclose, in C RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

the Corporate Governance Report, a
narrative statement on how they have
complied with the risk management
and internal control code provisions
during the reporting period. In
particular, they should disclose:

NAEECEEE R ME) A A
TR 58 B 0 {a] 72 3 45 HA 0 8 <7 2 B
EI R AR ST AR o BB

=

(@)

 FRATERR

the process used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant

risks;
RAR#HR  THREEERNAR
M

the main features of the risk
management and internal control
systems;
E%%E&W%%@%%mig
S§

an acknowledgement by the board
that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control
systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material
misstatement or loss;
EEgARHEEHERERRA
HEZERGEE  UHEERE
ZEFENERE - EFSGIE
MEZZRAGEEERMmIEER
REEEKEKRBENRR - mA
Rt ~rg@ A EANKRERM L
BRIEH A B M FBE AIRE

the process used to review
the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems and to resolve material
internal control defects; and
AR RBRERERAPEER
MEBMENEF RERABRENA
EEEIERARET © &

the procedures and internal
controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
BEREMANEHELSNEFNA

ERER PR

[ B IR K A B B4

Purpose

=Nz

Framework

g

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, and for
reviewing their design, operational adequacy and effectiveness.
EECREAREAKSERERAENNEREE RANREITHE
Whgst B ARG - BIFNFTDIEMB M

The Company has adopted a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for ensuring the smooth operation of business in order to
facilitate the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate
goals and objectives by allowing it to respond appropriately to
significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other
risks, maintaining proper records for provision of reliable financial
and corporate information, safeguarding the Group’s assets and
shareholder’s interests, ensuring all the transactions are executed
in accordance with the management’s authorization, and complying
with the requirements under the applicable rules and regulations,
and also with the Group’s internal policies and conduct. However,
the risk management and internal control systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to mitigate, rather than eliminate, the risks
of failure in operational systems when business objectives are being
sought.

RARIBREE M REAREZEFERM—EDEECK - %8|
MR AHEREBRGIEEE  FHEHRNERER 2&E 8
% aRRkEMER HELEEHEE - REEFRERERU
WEBGEXEERTE  REZELH - MEHAISEMBREE
BE REASENEERRRMZ  BRAGXSHIERBER
[BHV AT - LA R ST A 8A D ROE AR 89 E BN & B A 5D
BUORRITASFA - AT - RBREERABEZERGEER TSR
BEERBRFMSIBRRHE B EFBE 2RE - WHRBKER
B IRERRE B JEM bR 2 E B E R E R o

The Company has established a reasonable, effective and balanced
internal control and risk management systems, with clear division of
work among the Board, the Audit Committee, the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee, the management, functional departments
and business departments within the structure of the entire internal
control and risk management systems.
RRAFRYTHIE - B - BB A R0 B & E R EIE R
FiBPERS  BEREEE CXAREEZSE®  BHEE-
%%%Wﬂ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%&@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ¢ﬁl%

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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TEERBE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX R (E) PEERER
C.2.4 e The Board is responsible for maintain a sound and effective
(cont’d) implementation of internal control and risk management. The Board
(&) has established the Audit Committee which is responsible for

assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee, through discussion
with management and engagement of internal audit team of PIL,
to review the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and to report to the Board any
significant risk issues. The Board will provide its own view on the
effectiveness of the systems after reviewed the works and findings
of the Audit Committee.
EERREARRBRARENNANBEEREREREE - EFY
TRERZES  RERDEFERTARERANAEERRE
BRABERZRFEERIREN - EREZECFBEEREN
MAEBEARTMENAETAE A ANEEEREAREERR
(BIEVK  SERAAEERERERINE)NARE - WnE
EEREEMEARAREH EFSLEHNEZZEGNIER
R ERE  SREEHENRKBRERLER -

e Relevant executive directors and senior management have been
delegated with specific authorities and responsibilities for monitoring
the performance of designated operating business units. The
management is responsible for organizing and steering the daily
operation of the internal control of the Company. The management
would report the business plans and development to the Board
on a quarterly basis. This helps the Board to monitor the Group’s
business operations and plan on a timely basis in response to the
changes in business environment. Each operating business unit
also maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate to
its structure and business environment whilst complying with the
Group’s policies, standards and guidelines.
HARTEERSRERBEERTRERNNEEERSETE
CEEBEN s RE  c BEREEEEEMKRABRARAIPEZES
HEET BEEESFEREZFKHEARBRTESS - KRF
PEEERRLHRREDENERALEEBLERGE - &
EEENTHEREA ARBREBRE ABERERIEF - XA
Fri@~rAREEBR - £RIKES -

Internal Control System
N EPELTE R 4R

e The Group’s Internal Audit Function has been performed by internal
audit team of PIL which undertakes regular reviews of the Group’s
operations and system of internal controls. By adopting a risk-based
approach and operating on an on-going basis to evaluate risk level
on control environment, the annual audit plans which covers major
activities and processes of the Group’s operating business unit on
a rotational basis was submitted to Audit Committee for approval.
Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific areas of
concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management
from time to time.
AEENADBEZBMERATMBOANTEAHEEE  HEHAE
BIAREEE M) L E R A EIE R - BFEHERT TIEEHEIRA AR
BRRERE T - WAREEEEE - AT HEIER R ERK
FomnREREREEXBEVMNTEERHRBE  WHGRE
RTEZZEGEM - WIN TETRREREZEGRERREM
AENETHBETETER -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER
C.24 e Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
(cont’d) individual business units, the scope of work performed by Internal
(B Audit covers all material controls including financial, operational

and risk management functions. During the year, Internal Audit
deeply inspected, investigated and assessed two subsidiaries and
one associate of the Company. It has reviewed and assessed their
systems on procurement, operation flow, internal control, financial,
contracting, safety and environmental protection, human resources
and administration etc.

WRIERIEBEA R E BB RERIBEAME - NEPEH T
BE - RENE  LERCREESMEEEEE  ARARE
BEEE - FA - NMEZDRIARAZE - AR KT EARRD RIWHE
MEAA R—fEEE R R - @R TZERRINREE &8
IR - AEPESEE C BITE C BH  REEERBREBERE URAN
BRRATHEZRG °

The internal audit findings are preliminary discussed at management
level and the follow up actions are taken in response to the Internal
Audit’s recommendations. The internal audit findings are also
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board on the immediate
meetings following the issue of the internal audit report. The
responsible heads of departments will be notified of the control
deficiencies noted for rectification. The management would urge
the relevant business segments and units to implement rectification
measures in a timely manner, so as to ensure the internal control
system of the Company is effective. Follow-up reviews will be
conducted in due course and discussed at the Audit Committee
Meeting and Board Meeting to ensure that audit recommendations
are being properly implemented. During the year, corrective actions
were taken based on the audit findings and no significant control
failure which might affect shareholder’s interest has identified. The
Audit Committee reviewed all internal audit findings, management
responses and the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
controls. Significant risk issues and its recommendations, if any, are
referred to the Board for consideration. No suspected frauds and
irregularities, internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement
of laws, rules and regulations have come to the Audit Committee’s
attention to cause the Audit Committee to believe that the system of
internal controls is inadequate.

NBEZERGEIRXTEREN®  WEEAPEZAEZRK
HR#ETE - ABEXERTREBEHAPEAREENSE
FRETEZZESGRESS - FYMEEHERMEET TR
ZERETTIEE - EREBREBES DA REMLFEZEEE
B BRARABEZEZRAREE - nBREAETZESZE
BOnERA - eRNEERETRERN  WREREZEggaRE
ESFHRPNUW o FAN - ERMENNBRDEE - WEERA
BRUHRRN BN ENEAERLE - BEREE SR EHMA
NHEZER BEERERADEZEZTRERKY - WAE
FRERENABRFALREEZZHF) - A0 &R RGN
PEBAIEIF RS AISEMNERERE - RAIRERMS| BEZ

ZBeIE  HEHERZESHEANEERRE RN -

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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TtEERRSE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #F(Cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX fR(E) PEERER
C.24 Group’s risk management
(cont’d) SERRERE

(8)

e The Board oversees the Group’s risk management system and
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness. The Group has set
up an Enterprise Risk Management Committee, composed of
senior management and heads of key corporate functions, with a
mandate for overall risk management activities of the Group. The
Enterprise Risk Management Committee’s main responsibilities
include a comprehensive understanding of the Company’s major
risk exposures and its management status and maintaining the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management system.
EEgRRESASERAREEAZAGRBAERSMERBRIL -
AEERECERREELZES S  HaREEERFELERBM
WEEHER  EEZEAEAEEERBEMREIRDES - tERERE
BLZEeTERBOE S EBERARARENSHEEARRKEE
AR - AR ERE IR RGEEN AR -

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee is also responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s risk
management matters such as the overall objectives and policies as
well as its working mechanisms of the Group’s risk management
system, the establishment of individual risk management unit
at company level, risk assessment of major operating activities,
provide recommendations for the mitigation of major risks and to
carry out any other assignments from the Board.
tERREEZESNTAENASERREREFERNESSRL
B2 mASERREBEESNEBBERECE - ARHEER
N EAREARYERNRREEEN  EBEETESHEHR
BRATAh  WIRMERAEHRERNER  UREITESSTHNE
Al ELfh 3 IR o

e The Enterprise Risk Management Committee reports to the Board
and Audit Committee at least twice a year. It will report on the
Group’s risk management activities, risk positions and management
measures for mitigation of major risks noted. The Enterprise Risk
Management Committee will also submit the risk evaluation reports
which evaluate the risk level of major activities and processes of
the Group’s operating business with focuses on financial risks,
operational risks, strategic risks and market risks to the Board and
Audit Committee twice a year.
CHERREEZESFREIMAMNESEREZLZEGERA
AERNAREEREREIREE - BB REREERREIE
Bt UTEBFRAMNESFEREREZESREARTHRSE -
HEPBERE  SERR  RBEERLRTISERRS - TEARNER
EEEBEEFHRBENEREE

e With the support of Enterprise Risk Management Committee, Audit
Committee and the management, the Board identifies and assesses
the key risks, existing or emerging, facing the Group, and formulates
relevant strategies and measures to mitigate the risk exposure.
ErERREELZES FERLZESREEERY T  EFHGH
RIREHE RSB FEEE 2B EREE FERMR - WHETHAS
WA HE - UK RS R -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
C.24 INSIDE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY
(cont'd) NEH B ERR
€)

e |n order to ensure compliance with the continuous disclosure
obligation under the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and
the disclosure of inside information of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Board has
adopted an “Inside Information Disclosure Policy” effective from 29
June 2016 which sets out the guidelines to the directors, officers
and the employees of the Group, who is likely to be in possession
of the unpublished inside information to (a) monitor the Company’s
business developments so that any potential inside information is
promptly identified and report to the Board to enable them be timely
informed of any circumstances or development that may constitute
inside information of the Company and to make timely decisions
on disclosure, if necessary; and (b) take reasonable precautions
to preserve confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication.

RERTEBRIM EMBRBABRHEREST  UREHRBE
101 ([FH REEGEN ) (BB ENEST1RE)EAREANRHEN
HE BEFEEE_T—"FRAAZTNHBEN AR EESIKE
R BEMASE 2 ES s ABREE(HAIEFEERA
FZAFRES)IRMIES] - (@B AR AN EBRERETESR - U
EERFANEMBEENARES  UNEESER  UWEESE
REERA A B ARRINEEEMNBERRER - WIEHR
F o ONMBERELEBRE  RO)RRAEBEE  HARBHEER
FHANE(WERRE BEEARHAERIE -
C.2.5 |The Company should have an internal C e Please refer to C.2.4 above for the details.

audit function. Issuers without an HAFESE EXEC24E -

internal audit function should review

the need for one on an annual basis

and should disclose the reasons for

the absence of such a function in the

Corporate Governance Report.

NAER L NFBEZINEE ° RA NEP

ERNENETARSERNEAH

LR ULIATNEE - WECREE AR

EYNEEREDEGEELR -

C.3 Audit Committee
EZEEE

Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA

The Board should establish formal and transparent arrangements to consider how it will apply financial reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and maintain an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.

ExgRANAEAMBER RREERAMEERILIAEREQRZEMEENBEERIFLERRLERAENE

B o

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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CREARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2238 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
C.3.1 |— Full minutes of audit committee C e The Board has established the Audit Committee to investigate

meetings should be kept by a duly
appomted seoretary of the meeting.
EZLZEENTEERRHRER
EXEANRBRERE -

Draft and final versions of minutes
should be sent to all committee
members for their comment and
records, within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
’E\E%Eaﬁ‘*a’]fm%& X 1% 7 fa FETE
£§H¢ fE A 5E 18 353K
( %)J TRtk B &
RIEEZHZ

and handle matters within its terms of reference and make
recommendations to the Board for any necessary improvement.
BEEEORUBEREZESHEUTEREERE LB ESRENNE
ARIE - LRAEFFREABHRSEHE °

The current members of the Audit Committee include two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
lvan (Chairman) and Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Kwa Wee Keng, of which at least
one independent non-executive Director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications of accounting or related financial
management expemse
EZZEGREAKNEREMUBIIFNTES  HBAZIAHE
F(ER)RBEHELE - Uk —(ERTESE .%FE?EE L E R
ELO(BIUFNTEFEEEEEEER  AFHEEENS
FEENBERER -

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the findings and
recommendat|ons to the Board after each meeting.

BREFR BERZESGIFCRNEFSERLEANES -

The Audit Committee has regular meetings at least twice a year.
In 2021, a total of three meetings were convened and held with
satisfactory attendance. The details of Audit Committee members’
attendance in 2021 are as follows:

EREZESTHRTEE  BLOEBFMA -R_T=_—F X
ZESHARARBITDRAEE  BLEX 7/\/%5 cRZT=—
F - BERBERZESRENHEFBIEHAT
Number of
Attendance
Committee members ZEERE HERE
Lau Ho Kit, lvan (Chairman) 2RI {3 (3 ) 3/3
Cheng Fu Kwok, David B8 5 [ 3/3
Kwa Wee Keng RE 3/3

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and minutes of
meetings are circulated to the Board for information.

ERRBQANES AR REERLRARRESEMEM -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
C.3.1 e The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee
(cont’d) during the year under review:

()

EOBEFER  ERZESNTEGRNT

(@) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and for the six months ended
30 June 2021;
EWHE T -FF+ A=+ -AEERAE T
¢AH_+E¢AMHW$E@%6W%WE

(b) reviewed the external auditor’s Group audit plan and the letters
of management representation;

EHIMNERBMANEEETFEREEEEAERE

(c) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal
auditor;

RN AN O EET A R MR

(d) considered and approved the 2021 audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditor;

ZRRAE T~ —FHNEZERAD B A R ELRE R 5RAR

(e) reviewed the “Continuing Connected Transactions” set forth on
pages 84 to 89 of this annual report; and
EHHNAFREMAEZFAEZ[HEBRERS] Rk

() reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group.

ER RSB AR K A E T R AT RRE

On 28 March 2022, the Audit Committee met to review the 2021
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, in conjunction with
external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the
management and external auditor, the Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had, to the
best of its ability, assured itself that the disclosure of the financial
information in this report complies with the applicable accounting
standards and Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee therefore recommended the Board’s approval of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 for public release.

RZEZZF=A=+/\B  FXZESBRIMNEZBMEN =
T —FENGEVB®RE ﬁ%%ﬁ$*l%%2@%ﬁ%&
BEISER] - RIBNEHEALER - URETEE RIMNEZ SR H
% BREZEGERAR T%%%Z SRS WERNE
RAREBRBEAMBERTESER 2 e ERI R LW R BIMH 8+
Ne Al BREEEERAE T _—FT-A=+—HIF

FEMBHRRNEFSIERAIRED -

The Audit Committee also recommended the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group’s external auditor for 2022
and that the related resolution shall be put forth for shareholders’
consideration and approval at the forthcoming AGM.
EREEYNERE TR IR - HER S EBMALNEE
B _FEAINEZEED  WEBRNEERRAEAFAE 1R
RREE RSB o

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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SEEARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER
C.3.1 e During the year under review, the fees paid to the Company’s
(cont’d) external Hong Kong auditor for audit work amounted to
(1) HK$2,580,000 and for non-audit and review activities amounted to
HK$469,000 (including HK$295,000 for interim review, HK$51,000
for tax review and HK$123,000 for other related services).
REBEFNR » AR B XTINEEBZ A 2 %8 & B /52,580,000
B T IR R B B 2 BRAS B F 5460,00005 7T (BIE R R B
FA295,00078 7T, + Bi % E 6 & F51,0007%8 7T & H #h A8 R 75 & 9
123,000/ 7T) °
C.3.2 | A former partner of existing auditing C e No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
firm shall not act as a member of the existing auditing firm of the Company during the two years after he
committee for two years from the date ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.
of his ceasing to be a partner of or to MERREEEZARAKRENZEAANEERARKILEXNS
have any financial interest in, the firm, ZREBATEHABHEHMERN  EAXRAEZZEEN
whichever is later. 8 e
BEABEETAARANZHEAAN
AEABAMKEIERAZARAE
AR B - St N EEZ B XA A fETEJ
B S A 260 B B (LA B B é% %)
BETMERN  NMEEEERE %’%#}
B8 o
C.3.3 |The audit committee’s terms of C e The Audit Committee was established with specific written terms

reference should include:

BREEGNBESE RS

— recommendations to the board on
the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor
and approval of their terms of
engagement;
MONEZBENHNEE - EFEE
REBEMNEZSREERRIE
SIS A 25 A B 5 R AR

- review and monitor external
auditor’ s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of
audit process;

MRS N BE SR ANIE A2 BUAM B B 3 B
B R AZBUE e 0B U

= review of the company’s financial
information; and

FEHRRNHBER - R

— oversight of the company’ s
financial reporting system,
risk management and internal
control procedures, including
the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.
EERRPBERMGEIE - ER
BERANRERERF B
AITE S 5 I B 7 B R BB A
ER BIBERKR
5 AREBTIFEINE
REHAEERERR °

Hwa
5 I 5 5

g /0 3 D m

Tk

of reference which have complied with the Code requirements and
are modified from time to time. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is made available on the website of the Company and
Stock Exchange.
BRZBGRKIZTAREEAEEAI AL BESE KD TRIE
ISR - EREZE G BEGE R BTHNAR R KB -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R(E) PEERER

C.3.4 |The audit committee should make C e Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for the details.
available its terms of reference, A2 EX%EC.3.1K%C.3.378 ©
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock Exchange
and the company’s website.

BIZE B EE B kA EH
uh EARMEBESE  MEBEAER
EFRUETEORS -

C.3.5 |Where the board disagrees with C e The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that, subject to
the audit committee’s view on the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, Deloitte Touche
selection, appointment, resignation Tohmatsu be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for
or dismissal of the external auditors, 2022. The Board agreed with the recommendation made by the
the company should include in the Audit Committee.

Corporate Governance Report a BERLZECNEETLED  ENMBEEEY-BER A THE
statement from the audit committee AARZTZZFEHINEZEAD - HELSKRRREERITHR
explaining its recommendation and RAFKgLiE  Fo{EE - EESREERZEG2EH °
also the reason(s) why the board has

taken a different view.

NEFETRAEEZEESHIE

ZE BHESBRRINEZBMEEN

BR RAREECEE ARSI

BEREZEEMMEZENER UK

EXERHITRERNERR -

C.3.6 |The audit committee should be C e The Audit Committee has been advised that the Company Secretary
provided with sufficient resources to can arrange independent professional advice at the expense of
perform its duties. the Company should the seeking of such advice be considered
ERZEERERGTREERAEIT necessary by the Audit Committee.

HEBE - ERLZEQCOERN  EERLEESRRALESRKBUEEE
R ReEmERR AT BRAKRRRXZN -
C.3.7 |The terms of reference of the audit C e Please refer to C.3.1 and C.3.3 above for details.

committee should also require it:

ERRBEENRERETIARRE

— to review arrangements employees
of the company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure
that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;

and

BEl AR REMNUATLZHE : AF]
EERIEARREMBER - AELE
Tl EM S EARERERNTIES
TRIRLEET BRLEQEE
REHEELY  BRAHUKES
BEELRATFE LM FAE K FEGHE
BT &

— to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the company’s
relations with the external auditor.
AR A EINEZEE 2 MR E
%ﬁi CBEER_ECZHNEA

B2 EXEC31%C.3.3%E °

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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TtEERRSE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX fR(E) PEERER
D DELEGATION BY/THE BOARD
BEEERINER
DA Management functions
EEINRE

Corporate Governance Principle
EERRA

The Company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for Board approval and those delegated to

management.

NEEE—HEEANREAE NS EEESHENEARREERERENEA -

D.1.1

When the board delegates aspects of
its management and administration
functions to management, it must, at
the same time, give clear directions
as to the management’s powers, in
particular, where management should
report back and obtain prior board
approval before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on the
company’s behalf.
EESYHAETERITHIYES EA
RNERTERER  VARBRE
BRENEND - B TBEWEES - FAl
EEERERMESFFERURER
RN AME E E AR T 3R] S Al AR
AIERISESSHAESEEME °

C

Management meetings are held periodically where executive
Directors and heads of senior management of the respective
business divisions are present and clear directions are given as to
the management’s powers.

EREeTPRTIG  WITESREREBHIINEREEA
BRTEBAEGHFESE  YHEBRENENRTIBMWES -

Any issue that is considered to be material will be referred to the
Board for approval.

EAMEERZEZRXRFHIHETSEL -

Any materials matters requiring disclosure under the Listing Rules
or other applicable rules or regulations, appropriate disclosure
will be made and where necessary, circular will be prepared and
shareholders’ approval will be obtained in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable rules and regulations.

B EmRAS @A RAS RS ETRE EEFEE -
HEELEECRE  URFTERRBERZRAERMIES
T 838 ok R RS AR R 2 B ©

D.1.2

Formalise functions reserved to
the board and those delegated to
management and to review those
arrangements periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the
company’s needs.
DAL RE TES G R B
BLERTERENBAED IETE T
K0 E BAVERR AT AR IR B B T BEAT

ANFMES -

Under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the
Chairman of the Company, management is responsible for the day-
to-day operations of the Group.
EEBTRAE(RTRRARIZERHRT  EBEBEEARE
EHHTEE -

The Company has established clear terms of reference for the
Board which are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain

appropriate.
f@ﬂa%%%@ﬂﬂ%%%%%ﬁﬁvﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%
= A8

D.1.3

The company should disclose
the respective responsibilities,
accountabilities and contributions of
the board and management.

NAEREEESRHEBEESANR
gvﬁ%awmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

The respective responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions
of the board and management have been discussed through this
Corporate Governance Report.
EEgHERESENRBECRUAEE RS PR o

D.1.4

Directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. The
company should have formal letters of
appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.
EEREEERAETNRNERE
o RAIEBEAMNESTELZMEE - 7]
ABEBEEENFEZERR TGN -

Directors are given formal letter of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions of their respective appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
FEEFEWIERNEZEE  WEBAIHEREZ EERTEE
o  BEMEREESTHEELEES -
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TEERRE

Code Ref.
238

Code Provisions

FRIKX

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)
#3(cl)/
R(E)

Corporate Governance Practices
PEERER

D.2

Board Committees
EEEETNEES

Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE

Board Committees should be formed with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and

duties.

EFEgRTEZEGNKYEAERANSERESE  FREISZEGRHINEBE -

D.24

Where board committees are
established to deal with matters, the
board should give them sufficiently
clear terms of reference to enable them
to perform their functions properly.
BERNUZECRIEEHE  ESCR
MEBEZESRMAND EENBIESR
CREHREE BT -

C

Four Board Committees, namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Management Committee,
have been established with specific terms of reference. Please refer
to A.5.1-5.4, B.1.3, C.3.3 and D.1.2 for details.
BN AEETEES  IEREES  FTHEES 7
RLZEERERBZES  SEREBESE - FHF2HEXE
A5.1-5.4-B.1.3 - C.3.3K&D.1.21F8

D.2.2

The terms of reference of board
committees should require them to
report back to the board on their
decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions
on their ability to do so (such as
a restriction on disclosure due to
regulatory requirements).
EFRETSZEgBEaRERER
EHEEEENESFERAARTES
HiE o RERZLEGREEREE
BER thi] P BR 1M > BB 1 1Lt 3 () A R B
R E MR 6 5 5’) -

Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

BB T ZRENEFEeRNESIERIAEEE -

D.3

Corporate Governance Functions
REERBEE

D.3.1

The terms of reference of the board (or
a committee or committees performing
this function) should include:
BEEREEITHBRENE B8 RE
HERDHE

— develop and review the company’s
policies and practices on
corporate governance and make
recommendations to the board;
Hl7E R e A A8 b E B AR
RER WHEESREER

— review and monitor the training
and continuous professional
development of directors and
senior management;

BT REREERSREEAS
IS RIS EEEERE

No corporate governance committee has been established. The
Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with
the following duties:

AABWEBZIEEEREES  CEECHBIEHEZSEE
WETHBE

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
I R AR RN EEERBR R ER - WIRHER

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Diregtors;
B RERESNEIIRBETEER

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
BURERARBEEFTEEAREERATHENBERE
R

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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EEERRE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER

D.3.1 - review and monitor the (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

(cont’d) company’s policies and practices compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

(&) on compliance with legal and Directors;

regulatory requirements; FET A RERERANEERESNRTTAIRAERFM
WA RERAAEETAERE (nA)
ERTETEOBRRER
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
— develop, review and monitor the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and
code of conduct and compliance B ARARETTHHNBRAERRCEE RREPIEHHE
manual (if any) applicable to E R
employees and directors; and
Bl BALAEREEREZEEDN () such other corporate governance duties and functions set out
BFEREHRFMEE) & in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board
is responsible.
~  review the company’s compliance FINTFANEETSAENZSTHMAPEE ABE B (K
with the Code and disclosure in the TEHEE]) ©
Corporate Governance Report.
B 23 A P 2 EDA T RIS
REECEEARENEE -

D.3.2 | The board should be responsible for C e No corporate governance committee has been established. The
performing the corporate governance Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions. Please
duties set out in the terms of refer to D.3.1 above for details.
reference in D.3.1 or it may delegate AATWESRTEEEREES  CEERBIHEESET -
the responsibility to a committee or FAES2M EXX®ED.31IE ©
committees.

EXRRARRBITD.IMERESEFT
HHOPEELRE  TABEEEKR
FT—ExZEEEE -

E COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
ERAR 3R )5 58

EA Effective communication
BRUEME
Corporate Governance Principle
hEEBRE
The Board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation.
EEGREATERIFERFYHFE  LERERRAFAGHAMRRAGERFERERFEMOMOH2E -

= For each substantially separate issue C e Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings of
at a general meeting, a separate the Company on each substantially separate issue, including the
resolution should be proposed by the election of individual Directors.
chairman of that meeting. The company BEERBINEE  HEARAIREAE EUERIRZERR
should avoid “bundling” resolutions 2 BEERERHES -
unless they are interdependent and
linked forming one significant proposal.

Where the resolutions are “bundled”,
the company should explain the
reasons and material implications in the
notice of meeting.

ERRAS L SZTFEUIEEE
BBV EERANELRESR - RIE
BRAREREHBEEKRTFREE &
BRFK—EEANES  SARAE
BN IARR - EE[HILIAZ
X RARESRBRERERARE
RS RERTE -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2Z38 | FEKX fR(E) PEERER
E1.2 |— The chairman of the board C e The 2021 AGM at which the external auditor attended was

should attend the annual general
meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, he
should invite another member of
the committee to be available to
answer questions at the annual
general meeting.

%% Ifﬁﬁfﬂx%ﬂiﬁ

Bg E%é%@&&ﬁﬁﬂﬂ
ZBER(RMEERAME) TR
HiE - FAMEZBEEEF ARt
B EBEFESXIREHGER BR
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁéi@ﬁ%

— The chairman of the independent

board committee (if any) should
also be available to answer
questions at any general meeting
to approve a connected transaction
or any other transaction that
requires independent shareholders’
approval.
SR THNBVZEEWAN
FEIEEEMBANTRSH
IREARE LRIEMBE - BIER
5 ok AE fa] B B A8 08 7 AR SR L
X5 o

— The company’s management
should ensure the external
auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.
@ETE@%EJ%E@%M%V%{EW
HERREAFRE  DEFH
erI{’F iﬁ%?%ﬁz&ﬂixﬁiﬁﬁ

B EBUR A R BAT B B
’\E%F:ﬁi °

H}Eﬁ}

convened on 18 June 2021. Two general meetings (“GM”) of the
Company were also held on 30 July 2021 and 10 December 2021
respectively for approving the continuing connected transactions.

—EZ—FREAFAGER =TS =_—F A+ N\BEIT - HME
BREBMMELFE c KRR THIR_T_—F+tA=TAR=Z
Z—F+A+HABTTREAG(RREAG]) - BUEEH

e Details of Directors’ attendance at the 2021 AGM and GM are set
out below:
TRENESHE T —FRIAFAGRRERG 2FS

2021 AGM
—E-—F GM
Name of Directors EZEH & BRRAFAE BREXE
Teo Siong Seng RN 11 2/2
Chan Kwok Leung ~ PREI#R 11 2/2
Chung Pui King, EMER 11 2/2
Rebecca
Tan Chor Kee BRIt 5 1/1 2/2
Cheng Fu Kwok, L e 1/1 2/2
David
Lau Ho Kit, Ivan 2] 4 11 2/2
Kwa Wee Keng EE 11 2/2
Ho Teck Cheong GEIE] 1/1 2/2

e |n 2021, the Chairman of the Board (also served as Chairman of
Nomination Committee), the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the Company’s
external auditor attended the 2021 AGM and were available to
answer questions during the meeting.

E’Q:E:—i EEEIRREREZESER)  BEREESY
IE - FMEEGERRARAIINERBMAFEE T =_—F
HE%HEXA WAl g EEERMAE -

e In 2021, the Chairman of the independent board committee
attended the GM and was available to answer questions during the
meeting.

R-ZZEZ—F BUEFZEEFTRHERRIAEG  WAIRE L
&R -

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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SEEARE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX E(E) PEERER

E.1.3 | The company should arrange for the C e The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2021 AGM of the

notice to shareholders to be sent for Company was sent at least 20 clear business days before the
annual general meeting at least 20 clear meeting and the notices for the GM were sent at least 10 clear
business days before the meeting and business days before the meetings.
to be sent at least 10 clear business AR EE-T - —FRRAFAGETNELIE - HEZXA
days for all other general meetings. MRREXFERNIRERREASERTINELE T EEEBEL
RBRRBAFAGME @ ARIERHE AR -
ARERTHEIRZ HIA*%EI A AR
REXBH - MMEHMRERS
mE - BIRERERITAIZDE A
EEHERBEA -

E1.4 |The board should establish a C e The Board has established a shareholders communication policy
shareholders’ communication policy and made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is
and review it on a regular basis to subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
ensure its effectiveness. ESCHERFBABE - WEEHRARRE - ZBEHBT
EEREHTERRBABGK - X EH HAYE AR AT AR AR ELBICAR ©
AT AR LR ©

e This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring that the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”),
both individual and institutional, and, in appropriate circumstances,
the investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company (including its financial performance, strategic
goals and plans, material developments, governance and risk
profile), in order to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

PR P E G B E R AR AR (TIRR]) - B A E A Rk
BRE  REEZEBEATEE—MREEAL  HAERKISEHE -
HRARBRZEBEBOARNNREN (BFEEVBRIE - 88 EE NG
£ iﬁ?ﬁ CERRERER)  —FEERRAERFERLT
IiERESN Eﬁmgﬁx%&&é/\iéﬁvﬁ GIIE: V3K
E.1.5 |The Company should have a policy C e The Board adopted a dividend policy which aims to allow

on payment of dividends and should

disclose it in the annual report.

gﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁiﬁ%%mﬂ%ﬂm@iiﬁw
= o

Shareholders to share the Company’s success whilst preserving
the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth opportunities.
The Board devotes to achieving prudent capital management and
meeting Shareholders’ expectations with the dividend policy.
ARAEERMBERE - EEBRRDZAQALERR - RKAE
BAD A REE S AR AR RS - ESSHNRBB
AREBFREFEENEAER  WHERRHEE -

Under this policy, the normal dividend payout ratio of the Company
is about 30% of the net profit attributable to Shareholders in any
financial year but no more than 50% thereof unless otherwise
approval by the Board.

R L BUR $/&ETT%iﬁé‘fﬂﬂﬁiﬂﬁziﬁ%%ﬂx%ﬂ%ﬁﬂx%ﬁfﬁ%
i M30%E AR BT - BRIFE S1THE - BAITFEBBERER
JEAL 45 M TR EY50% ©
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/

Explain (“E”)
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER
E1.5 e The declaration of dividends, whether as interim and/or final
(cont’d) dividends, is subject to the discretion of the Board in considering
€) the following factors in each financial year:

BENER(THEESTHR AARAKREINEREESNE
BB FERBEEBATEE

= Financial performance and liquidity conditions;
MBRARRBESMKR

— Retained earnings and distributable reserves;

B M r] ok

— Company’s debt level to equity ratio and return on equity;
AR B E R Bt R FNAR AN B R R A KT

— Dividend received from the Company’s associates and
subsidiaries;
R A R A BB A R FNES & N AR A AR 2,

— Expected working capital requirement and capital expenditure;
TRHEEESHERRERMAE

— Future expansion, other investment plans and other funding
requirements;

ARIER - RREAIINEMESHER

— Global economic condition and other internal or external
factors, including any restrictions under the applicable laws and
regulations and the Articles or contractual restrictions as may
apply from time to time; and
IRBEEAMOR - R E A RSN D A 2= (B 45 B A B AR 1R 3
FRRPERIER R ERMARTE O ERPREI S LBRE]) : &

— Other factors that the Directors deem appropriate.

EERRAENEMRARE -

Final dividend declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an AGM and must not exceed
the amount recommended by the Board. The Board may, without
the approval of Shareholders, also declare an interim dividend if it
appears to them that they are justified by the distributable profits of
the Company.

RARFERMARBRSVAERREFAG FUATRAZRE
MREBE - BTG HEAEESEENEE - EFSNALRERR
#E - EIRER/RBEARAANSIRENESSENPHRE -

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.

BEES B TIRRIRERE -

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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TtEERRSE
Comply (“C”)/
Explain (‘E")
Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(7cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices
SZ38 | FEHKX fR(E) PEERER
E.2 Voting by poll
AIREFARR

Corporate Governance Principle
REEGBRE

The Company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll.
DR EERIRRABAREF X ETRROFMIE

E.2.1 | The chairman of a meeting should C e Detailed explanation regarding the procedures for conducting poll
ensure that an explanation is provided by Shareholders had been provided at the commencement of the
of the detailed procedures for 2021 AGM and GM.
conducting a poll and answer any BEBRRABRESIRNRANEFOFARBEER T —FKRRE
questions from shareholders on voting BAEXERIRERNSHIARIRME -
by poll.

AEEXFREBRESHE LMRRFE e At the 2021 AGM and GM, the Chairman of the meetings put
AR EF N ETRANFART - I each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll in
B RRAE @R KRR EMA accordance with the Company’s Article.
1R e RIB-_—FERREAFASRBRAE L - ARFEREAR
RIERMA RRAGBEAZZTERERETREFARR
e Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at
the 2021 AGM and GM.
RAAABRODBPERELRAREZEA_Z - —FRREAFAE
ERRAREHNERES  UEREERMEZSY -
e All the resolutions put to vote at the Company’s general meetings
were taken by poll.
FIARARAIRRAE FIREZAREARGBBREFTAETE
oo
e Poll results were posted on the websites of the Company and Stock
Exchange.
RERRERDBHNOARRF KB FTAE

F COMPANY SECRETARY

NEME

Corporate Governance Principle
PEERRA

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

RAWEEXEESE I EEE2AC  BREFGHELRENARIRRY  URBRBREZSBRLRERF - ArIWESR
BEBFFER /BEFRTHAENESSRUEASEIEER WLRHESHAREIREEERE -
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TEERRE

Comply (“C”)/
Explain (“E”)

Code Ref. | Code Provisions #3¥(cl)/ | Corporate Governance Practices

2E38 | FAKX R (E) PEERER

F.1.1 The company secretary should be C e Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca (“Ms. Chung”) (a certified public
an employee of the company and accountant), who was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
have day—to—day knowledge of the Company on 10 September 2013, is also an executive Director of
Company s affairs. the Company. Ms. Chung is currently the Chief Financial Officer

NEIMEERARNESR YA of the Company. The biographical details of Ms. Chung are set
E %%i‘“ﬁﬁﬁiuf out under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profile”.
MRt (Ext) GEMEAmR _SE—=F LA TBEZE
RARBZRAWE - BWIFRAR T¥ﬂf7§$ B TREEAR
g?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁiZEﬁ%ﬁﬁ%E%&%@ﬁﬁA
B8 e

e The Company Secretary ensures the Board meetings are conducted
under appropriate procedures.
NEIMERREZTSEINEERF NET -

e The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions or minutes
and keeps records of substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board and Board Commmee meetmgs

NAMEREMEEE S RAETZE e EARERAEH
uaﬁ- Nikz e tﬁu§m§x$lﬁﬁkﬁmﬁim °

e During 2021, the Company Secretary undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
RZZEZ—F - RAWBEEET IO NRHFEZEEZIIARA
H kg A o

F.1.2 |The board should approve the C e The selection, appointment or dismissal of the Company Secretary
selection, appointment or dismissal of is approved by the Board.
the company secretary. NEIMENRE  ZARBRERHEIHESSIE
NAIWENHE  ZENREERKH
EEGHE -

F.1.3 | The company secretary should report C e The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman
to the board chairman and/or the chief whilst all members of the Board have access to the advice of the
executive. Company Secretary.

RAWERAESTE R R,/ HITH RAMEBRRETFREESER MABEZTGHEHITRER
BEIERR AIMEZER -
F.1.4 | All directors should have access to the C e All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable law,
rules and regulations, are followed.

FrEZEEREAIRGARMENE LM
ZRMNRYE  UBRREFSEFR
FEERERE  REIRROISESE

=n

S

Company Secretary and legal and professional consultants of the
Company, whenever necessary, to ensure compliance with all
applicable law, rules and regulations, and corporate governance
practices.
EREFHA2EENER NAWE AR R EXFER (I
a«ax)ﬁ’)ﬁi&ﬂfﬁk LME%U&FEE BRVER - RBISOEBILA R
BEERER -

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

The board of directors (“Board”/”Directors”) of Singamas
Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the
Company’s annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management services to its
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 51, 22 and 23, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pagesi11 to 112.

Based on the operating results of the Group, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK11
cents and a final special dividend of HK5 cents per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: nil). Together with an interim dividend of HK7 cents
per ordinary share (2020: nil) and interim special dividend
of HK20 cents per ordinary share (2020: nil), total dividend
for the year would be HK43 cents per ordinary share (2020:
nil).

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2022 Annual General Meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 29 June 2022 (“2022
AGM”). For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at 2022 AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
24 June 2022 to Wednesday, 29 June 2022, both days
inclusive, and no transfer of the shares of the Company
will be effected during such period. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at 2022 AGM, all transfers of shares
of the Company, duly accompanied by the completed
transfer forms and all relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23 June 2022.
The shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 29 June 2022,
the record date of 2022 AGM, will be entitled to attend
and vote at 2022 AGM.

For determining the shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend and final special dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Friday, 8 July 2022
to Tuesday, 12 July 2022, both days inclusive, and no
transfer of the shares of the Company will be effected
during such period. In order for a shareholder of the
Company to qualify for the proposed final dividend
and final special dividend, all transfers of shares of the
Company, duly accompanied by the completed transfer
forms and all relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by no later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 7 July 2022. Subject to the approval
by the Company’s shareholders at the 2022 AGM, the
proposed final dividend and final special dividend are
payable on Friday, 22 July 2022 to those shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, 12 July 2022 (the record date).
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FEREROGBFERFE

AR —_E-—_FREAFAEHTA_Z
TZERAZTAREBRDRIT(ZEZ
“EFREAFRE])  c REEREHNFE_-F
T —FREAFASITRE LREZER
AABER—_ZE-_—E XA -1+MB(EH
AE_Z-_—FXNA-t+hhBEH=E
REEMR)EEHERNDBEELFE -
EZPEABTeRBEMRATIRGBE
B AR EREE _S-__FREEAF
AREWRE LIRE - FIEARRNRGOBP
YHSRENR-_E-_—FXA-+=H(EH
M TFEE=1+28 EREEZZBF
FERFIBRBREXRIARAR ZRAOBP
Zik - BAEPRELFZLAERAE M
AEBBETEFANERI18IHKA MR L17E
1712E1716546 - UMEBBFERZFE - ¥
—E-FANAZTABERD)EIZE=
—FERRAFRSLHBAH) ARQFRERSL
MEZHRRGEEREHE "S- —_FREFAF
AEUNRE ERE o

AETRRWREBE_E-_—F+-_A=+
—BHIEFE 2 &2 RHRE RRER AR S
WA  AATER_ZE_—_F+ANB(E
HRA)Z2-"2-_—"F+tA+-_HEH D) (B
FEEMA)EENERNDBEELFE -
RZBEAB T EZBRITAARRRRM B
B ARRIREAFEEZEZHRBRKE
NAREBRRIREER - IEARRRIMRMD B
PYHRRERAN-_Z-_—_F++H(EH
M) TFER=1+20] - ER2EZZBFX
BRAEHEBREXIAQNRZBRNDBEE
TEESTPREBAZLEARAD @ HurAE
BT 2R RNBER1835FAMAN1711712
17165 - ARBEBFELFE - AL
AZBRER S —_FRRFFARS LHLE
% ZEZARBBREEKRBPERREEN =
- _F+A-+-_HEHRA)RGFR=
T+ A+-—H(EH ) (BN BH)
BRI EZM EZ IR -

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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EEgRE

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review of our business and performance

A review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial
position are provided in the Chairman’s Statement from
pages 8 to 13, Financial Highlights from pages 4 to 5
and Frequently Asked Questions from pages 14 to 20
of this Annual Report, which discussion forms part of
this Report of the Directors for purposes of Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). The outlook of the Company’s business is
discussed throughout this Annual Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and are in addition to the matters referred
to in the Chairman’s Statement and Frequently Asked
Questions of this Annual Report:

1. Economic Conditions and Market
Competition Risks

The impact of global economic conditions and
market sentiment would directly affect the demand
of dry freight containers of the Group. The outbreak
of COVID-19 since early 2020 have a significant
impact on the world’s economic activities. Although
certain countries are relaxing their pandemic
prevention measures, the widespread of Omicron
COVID-19 variant is still affecting the world’s
economy. According to International Monetary
Fund’s January 2022 World Economic Outlook
Update, it estimates the global economy in 2022 to
be in a weaker position than previously expected.
Widespread of Omicron variant coupled with the
rising energy prices and supply chain disruption
have resulted in higher inflation than expected.
Earlier withdrawal of monetary accommodation in
the United States of America (“US”) may also affect
consumer demands and which in turn may disrupt
market demand in new dry freight containers.
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ERDERRR

BREFA  ARREHFNEBENMAEEXE
RE - UMEEERMBRAAEHENERR
EMRA MO - DRIFINRAFRFESEE
F1BAM[EEHRE] - B4EE5BN[ BT
| RE4EE208 [ —KRIER P - Hifw
RIE R BUED (BB EDIF6228) MR AR E
RABFGHREZ— 80 - KAREHHA]
BERANFRTRBO T

FERREAHBEREE
BrARFIRIEFERS | K[ —ARIRME P ATz
EFUI - AR BRIE R BEH (FEEDE
622F )BT T ATE M E Z R K &1 EE B
HZEmT -

1. EEERIRTEHFRRE

PHREBEARANTHIEEERTENR
SELZEEENTE R BT -_FF
FRNLATR - 3 BT AR 55 18 3 2 BR
REEHEETEAFE BE &
BREEMRREDRER  BHET
AR & Omicron & £ 1K Bz BRI E S
EEHKE - REEREEESHE
BR T —F— A% (EREE
RE)EH ARG EREER T
“FRHERR L AT FRHIE S5O
Omicron®t Rk E)Z E1#E - 1 LEEIR
Bf RN EEEEL  SPCBIKRE
BRTEH - SHRE R ([RE ) 5RA
BRHERRARBRNMAIEZEHES
MER - EMBERZERMENTISE



Political tensions between the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”/“China”) and the US have not
been eased on Joe Biden becomes US President.
Further, the recent Ukraine war triggers US,
European Union, Britain and some of their allies to
impose new sanctions against Russia, the military
confrontation between parties has affected global
trade and economy and which in turn may affect
the Group’s container manufacturing business in
China.

The industry faces intense competition from
container manufacturing companies concentrate
in the PRC. Good market demand in 2021
attracted new players to the market, competitors
may attempt to gain market share by offering
lower prices especially when the market demand
slows down. The Company may be required to
reduce prices when facing competition, which
may affect the Group’s profitability. The Group has
transformed itself as “New Singamas” since 2019
for the purpose of reducing its dependency on
trade-driven market and focusing on developing
higher-margin specialized containers as well as
becoming a container solution provider.
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Product Diversification and Market
Expansion Risks

To reduce the reliance on single market, the Group
put more resources on developing customised
containers for meeting various demand across
different industries. The level of market acceptance
on the new products and the Group’s capability
in meeting technical requirements set forth the
products would affect the product diversification
and market expansion process. On the other hand,
as the customised containers generally enjoy higher
profit margin, which may attract competitors or
new players to enter into the market. The Group
continues to recruit engineers and technicians from
various sources for strengthening the research and
development team in order to differentiate itself with
the competitors. In addition to self-development,
the Group cooperated with other patent owners for
entering into unique markets directly and effectively.

Manpower and Retention Risks

The competition for talents has led to the risk that
the Group is not being able to attract or retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required
skills, experience and competence for meeting
the business objectives of the Group. The Group
will conduct regular reviews of its recruitment and
retention practices, remuneration packages and
succession plan to mitigate the risks. Moreover, in
view of continuing increase in wage rate in China,
the Group will increase the level of automation in the
production process in order to reduce manpower
requirements in the future and to minimise the
labour cost.
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Financial Risks

In the course of business activities, the Group is
exposed to a variety of financial risks, including
credit, liquidity, currency and cash flow interest rate
risks.

a. Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts, if necessary.

Details of the credit risk and impairment
assessment are set out in note 46b to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants
or to timely negotiate with the lenders if any
non-compliance is expected.

Details of the liquidity risk are set out in note
46b to the consolidated financial statements.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases, bank
balances and cash, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. To mitigate the
foreign currency risk, the Group entered into
certain forward contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management
of the Company monitors the movement of
the foreign currency closely and will consider
hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

Details of the currency risk are set out in note
46b to the consolidated financial statements.
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d. Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow
interest rate risk primarily relates to floating
rate borrowings and variable rate bank
balances. Interest rate risk on bank balances
is considered immaterial due to short
maturity. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. As
the Group only had limited bank borrowings
during the year, the management of the
Company considered it is not necessary to
hedge the interest rate risk. The management
monitors overall bank borrowings balance
and the interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Details of the cash flow interest rate risk
are set out in note 46b to the consolidated
financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A discussion on the Company’s environmental policies
and performance as required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are published in the separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report which will be available at
the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on or before
31 May 2022.

Report of the Directors
ExaRs

d.  HeREFEEE
REBRARF ZRERENE
[\ 3 B2 ELF BRI RAE T IRTT
REERERE - AN BIREE - R1T
TR R MR E R AR - AN
SEEBBRAFENNRE TR
[REARBEMERRER - HRE
BRFARBEARNRITER -
ARBIEEBR BT HEELH A
FREEG o BIEEEIEEER
TERSBEMN XK ER - I
KB & B EEH PEAR X
KED ©

R REMNRERFBEHIINER
B B RR M sE46D0 ©

REBERRRE

RIBE R FMED (BB EDIF6228) AT HEAR
REHRIZER KRBT e

BEREASENRARBRMRBFBTNENBE
VR HENEAREAN  ZWERKR =
T _FRA=T—HHZAHEREAR
AREBHERZMBRAB (B
uf o

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR

79



80

Report of the Directors
EEgRE

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular,
those have significant impact on the Group. As a listed
company in Hong Kong, the share of the Company is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange since
8 July 1993, the Company continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange including the
disclosure requirements, corporate governance code and
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers therein. Under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap.571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Company is required to maintain a register of interests
in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is
obliged to the disclosure requirement of inside information.
The Board will monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
such policies are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation
units from time to time.

The Group believes that employees are the valuable assets
of an enterprise and regards human resources as its
corporate wealth. The Group is committed to comply with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Privacy Ordinance, ordinances against
disability, sex, family status and races discriminations, the
Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance
and the ordinances applicable to occupational safety so
as to safeguard the benefits and interests of the Group’s
employees.

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopted effective
environmental technologies to ensure its operations meet
the standards and ethics in respect of environmental
protection.
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To protect the Group’s intellectual property rights, the
Group has registered its domain name and its trademark
have been applied for or registered in various classes in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and
takes all appropriate actions to enforce its intellectual
property rights.

During the year, the Group has obtained all the approvals,
permits, consents, licences and registrations required for
its business and operations and all of them are in force.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationships with employees, suppliers
and customers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to
fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims
at delivering constantly high standards of quality in the
products and services to its customers. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

Employees as the valuable assets of the Group, the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard. The Group also organised staff-friendly activities
for employees, in order to provide communication
opportunities among staff, which are vital to promote staff
relationship and physical fitness.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 322 to 324 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 53
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2021, calculated under section 297 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to US$162,013,000
(2020: US$154,361,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures of the Company are set out in notes
51, 22 and 23, respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank balances
and cash of US$438,171,000 (2020: US$48,787,000)
and without interest-bearing debts. Total interest-bearing
debts as at 31 December 2020 was US$27,584,000
and the corresponding gearing ratio, calculated on the
basis of the Group’s total interest- bearing debts over
equity attributable to owners of the Company was 0.06.
The Group was in net cash as at 31 December 2021,
calculation of a net debt to equity ratio was not applicable
(2020: not applicable).
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The calculation of interest coverage ratio of the Group’s
profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) to total net interest expense for the year ended
31 December 2021 was 268.9 (2020: 26.9).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s revenues are largely transacted in US
Dollars (“US$”). To match with the revenues stream, the
Group’s interest-bearing debts were mainly in US$. As at
31 December 2020, the Group’s interest-bearing debts
balance was 69.61% in USS$.

Of the total interest-bearing debts as at 31 December
2020, all bank borrowings are repayable within one year.
The Group’s interest-bearing debts are principally on a
floating rate basis.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. To mitigate the foreign currency risk, the
Group entered into certain forward contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements. No interest was capitalised by the Group
during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

The Group had the following continuing connected
transactions during 2021:

(1)  On 14 August 2020, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master services
contract (the “Master Services Contract 2020”) with
PIL (for and on behalf of PIL and its subsidiaries (“PIL
Group”)), for the provision of container depot and
logistics services to PIL Group. In view that PIL is
a connected person of the Company, the entering
into the Master Services Contract 2020 constituted
a connected transaction. As the Master Services
Contract 2020 involves transactions, which occur
on a recurring basis over a period of time, the
transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). The Master
Services Contract 2020 took effect from 14 August
2020 and will expire on 31 December 2022.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual cap for the transactions exceeds
0.1% but all of them are less than 5%. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the Master
Services Contract 2020 are subject to annual
reporting, announcement, and annual review but are
exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions have been
disclosed in the announcement published on 14
August 2020 in compliance with the Listing Rules.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

MRIZBZ—F AEBEETT TIHE@E
RS :

(1) REl(RERAEB)R=_ZE_ZFFN\A
+mﬁﬁt$ B (R A A 15 R H
MEBAR (K FEWEER]DEE —MH=E
REERITZZ2FERBEH]) -
IR SR 2RI MR RS T K F
MEER - ARATFMBEALRRRZ
BEAT ﬂJM_?_EEI%W
ERIEKEERS - —EFER
Ba R RE— &%ﬁmﬁ%Lﬁz
R ZERXRZEMBKERRES
EmRAT EWRADE T HAZEIET
KRB FEBRERS - T _FF
IRBEREZZE=FTFNA+TEA
RBESEER_ZTEZ__F+=A=+

—BEm -

RARIE E AR AFE14.07EMZER
SWEZFELRATFTEN — @A
t%@%ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂtﬁ)
ZH0.1%  BEEZ2IHELNRE5% - A
%':E:EEI%%QHETZ%
ERHAEBT LETMRAETHAREFE
Bl NEF FEEZORE  BE
MEBTREIAENRTE - ZEHE
MERXHFBEEER EMHAAMSE
E EAEZE-_ZTEFNATEANA
LR P ARE -



On 23 June 2021, the Company (for and on behalf
of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2021”)
with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the
sales of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that
PIL is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the Master Purchase Contract 2021
constituted a connected transaction. As the Master
Purchase Contract 2021 involved transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual cap for the transactions exceeds
5%. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Purchase Contract 2021 were
subject to annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
After obtaining the approval from the independent
shareholders on 30 July 2021, the Master Purchase
Contract 2021 took effect from the date of such
contract and expired on 31 December 2021. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcement published on
23 June 2021 and the circular dated 13 July 2021
in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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On 2 November 2021, the Company (for and on
behalf of the Group) entered into a master purchase
contract (the “Master Purchase Contract 2022”)
with PIL (for and on behalf of PIL Group), for the
sales of the Equipment to PIL Group. In view that
PIL is a connected person of the Company, the
entering into the Master Purchase Contract 2022
constituted a connected transaction. As the Master
Purchase Contract 2022 involves transactions,
which occur on a recurring basis over a period
of time, the transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios
(other than profits ratio) calculated pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
proposed annual cap for the transactions exceeds
5%. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the Master Purchase Contract 2022 are
subject to annual reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
After obtaining the approval from the independent
shareholders on 10 December 2021, the Master
Purchase Contract 2022 took effect from 1 January
2022 and will expire on 31 December 2022. Details
of these continuing connected transactions have
been disclosed in the announcement published
on 2 November 2021 and the circular dated 25
November 2021 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Group had the following connected transaction during
2021:

On 4 November 2020, the Company entered into a deed
(the “Deed”) with PIL in relation to the settlement of the
outstanding amount of US$149,696,984 (“Outstanding
Amount”) due from PIL Group to the Group in accordance
with a repayment schedule to be repaid over a 10-year
period with interest. The Outstanding Amount referred to
trade receivables arose from the provision of equipment
from the Group to PIL Group under the master purchase
contract dated 6 October 2014 and the master purchase
contract dated 30 October 2017 and from the provision
of container depot and logistics services from the Group
to PIL Group under the master service contract dated 14
December 2016 or otherwise provided from 1 January
2020 onwards. In view that PIL is a connected person
of the Company, the entering into the Deed and the
transaction thereunder constituted an amendment to
the terms of the continuing connected transaction of the
Company and hence constituted a connected transaction
of the Company under Charter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transaction contemplated under the Deed was
subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

After obtaining the approval from the independent
shareholders on 11 December 2020, the transactions
and repayment arrangements under the Deed has been
effective from the date of which certain conditions were
fulfilled. The Deed has been effective on and from 30
March 2021, being the date on which all the conditions of
the Deed had been satisfied. On 29 December 2021, the
Company has duly received from PIL the early repayment
of the Outstanding Amount in full. Details of the connected
transaction have been disclosed in the announcements
published on 4 November 2020, 3 March 2021, 31
March 2021, 26 November 2021 and 30 December 2021
respectively and the circular dated 24 November 2020 in
compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
paragraph (1) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions between the Group and
PIL Group for the provision of container depot and logistics
services to PIL Group were entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, conducted on
normal commercial terms and entered into in accordance
with the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole and on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties.
The total amount of such transactions for the year ended
31 December 2021 was US$2,352,292 (equivalent to
approximately HK$18,347,878) and did not exceed the
annual cap of US$4,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$34,875,000).

The aforesaid continuing connected transaction in
paragraph (2) above have been approved by the Directors
and the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the transaction and are in the opinion that those
continuing connected transactions for the sales of the
Equipment from the Group to PIL Group were entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, conducted on normal commercial terms and
entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole
and on terms no less favourable than those available
to or from independent third parties. The total amount
of such transactions for the year ended 31 December
2021 was US$65,705,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$512,499,000) and did not exceed the annual
cap of US$66,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$514,800,000).
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the external auditor of the
Company to report the continuing connected transactions
of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The external auditor has reported to the
Board and confirmed that for the year 2021 the continuing
connected transactions (i) have received the approval of
the Board; (i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (i) have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and
(iv) the continuing connected transactions in paragraphs
(1) and (2) above have not exceeded the relevant caps as
disclosed in the announcements dated 14 August 2020
and 23 June 2021 respectively.

The Group entered into certain transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2021, some
of which constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Group and were set out in note 50 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report (“Annual Report
20217). Including in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Annual Report 2021 in respect of
related party transactions, sales to fellow subsidiaries and
rental expense to a fellow subsidiary were the continuing
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has
complied with the requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, no asset of the Group was
pledged as securities to any third parties (2020: an office
premises located at Kowloon, Hong Kong was pledged as
securities for securing a bridging loan).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During 2021, the Company provided guarantees to
banks as securities for credit facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. The Group does
not provide any guarantee to any third parties and does
not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021
(2020: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and has taken appropriate
steps to adopt and comply with the applicable principles
and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Further information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all of the Directors have complied with, for
any part of the accounting period covered by this annual
report, the required standard as set out in the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Mr. Teo Siong Seng

Mr. Teo Tiou Seng (resigned on 11 March 2021)

Ms. Chung Pui King, Rebecca

Mr. Kwa Wee Keng*

Mr. Tan Chor Kee*

Mr. Chan Kwok Leung?”
(redesignated from Executive Director to Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2022)

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David*

Mr. Lau Ho Kit, Ivan*

Mr. Ho Teck Cheong*

# Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”), at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-
election. Pursuant to articles 92 and 92A of the Articles,
Mr. Teo Siong Seng, Mr. Kwa Wee Keng and Mr. Cheng
Fu Kwok, David shall retire from office at the 2022 AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is for three years
and is subject to retirement and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of Listing Rules
from each of Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok, David, Mr. Lau Ho Kit,
lvan and Mr. Ho Teck Cheong and considered them as
independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the boards of
the subsidiaries of the Company (the “Subsidiaries”) during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)
Current directors of Subsidiaries:

CHAN Kwok Leung
CHEN Tao

CHU Chee Leong
CHUNG Pui King, Rebecca
DING Zhong Fu

LAl Zhi Yong

Lilian LEE

LIU Kecheng

PAN Chun Ling
QIAN Ming

SIU Wai Yee, Winnie
SONG Yan Yan
SUN Da Peng

TEO Siong Seng
TEO Teng Seng
WENG Sheng Qiang
WU Bing Hong

WU Ding Xiang

XU Jin Yong

YIP Ching Han
ZHANG Tian Bao
ZHAO Xiaobing

Resigned as directors of Subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report:

CHENG Chih Hsin
TEO Tiou Seng
WANG Ge
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which (a)
were required notification to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
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into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c) 25FRIBAIAR R RBRFT Z s sk 2
were required, pursuant to Model Code contained in the |~ :
Listing Rules, to be naotified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:
Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”) ZAQTZER (KRS
Percentage
Number of Shares/ of Total
Underlying Shares Held Issued
BEZRG HERHHE Shares
Personal  Corporate Total L2
Name Capacity Interest Interest Other Interest ~ ER{TRA
i 54 BARR AEIL: Hits wER [27i)>
Mr. Teo Siong Seng Beneficial Owner 42,377,250 - - 42,377,250 1.75
RINBEE ERfBA
Ms. Chung Pui King, Beneficial Owner 195,291 - - 195,291 0.01
Rebecca
Bzt ERBBA
Mr. Tan Chor Kee (Note) ~ Spouse Interest - - 6,000 6,000 0.00
PR & 5% A i2) [T 5
Note: Biat -

Ms. Lee Tew Guan, spouse of Mr. Tan Chor Kee holds 6,000 Shares.
Mr. Tan Chor Kee is deemed to be interested in 6,000 Shares held by
Ms. Lee Tew Guan under SFO.
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All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares and underlying Shares.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries
a party of any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Save as disclosed above, none of Directors nor their
associates, had any other interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
notification to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such
Director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were
required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which
(c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or the
Stock Exchange and none of Directors, nor their spouse
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2021, according to the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and
so far as was known to any Director or chief executive
of the Company, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above), had
an interest or a short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
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Number of Shares

R EB
Percentage of
Direct Indirect Total Issued
Name Notes Interest Interest Shares
H2WE BT
#®E Hiat BEiEER B OB
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (1) - 993,825,345 41.12
(“Temasek”)
REHIERGELA)BR R BN(OA T ])
PIL Pte. Ltd @) - 993,825,345 41.12
Pacific International Lines (Private) Limited @) 993,825,345 - 41.12
(“P”_!l)
RN EMEHR QRN AFME])
Madison Pacific Pte. Limited 3) - 993,825,345 4112
Madison Pacific Trust Limited (4) - 993,825,345 41.12
Hyder Ahmad (5) - 438,452,359 18.14
Broad Peak Investment Holdings Ltd () - 438,452,359 18.14
Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd. (5) 438,452,359 - 18.14
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Notes:

(1)

@

3)

“)

©®)

©)

Temasek indirectly controls PIL Pte. Ltd. which wholly owns
PIL. PIL directly holds 993,825,345 Shares. Temasek’s indirect
interest also arose by reason of Ivy 1 Investments VCC (“Ivy 17),
which is 100% indirectly controlled by Temasek, as a charge
over 993,825,345 Shares held by PIL had been granted in favour
of lvy 1 (where Madison Pacific Pte. Limited was the security
agent). Additionally, SeaTown Lionfish Pte. Ltd. (“SeaTown”) was
the lender of record that had a direct interest in 496,912,673
Shares pledged by PIL, which formed part of the 993,825,345
Shares Temasek was deemed interested in. Temasek is the
indirect sole shareholder of SeaTown..

A total of 998,825,345 Shares are directly held by PIL which is
100% owned by PIL Pte. Ltd..

Madison Pacific Pte. Limited was the security agent under a
loan facility whose sole lender was Ivy 1. As disclosed in note (1)
above, a charge over 993,825,345 Shares held by PIL had been
granted in favour of vy 1.

Madison Pacific Trust Limited was the security agent under a
loan facility whose lenders were Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd.,
Seatown and a third party who were granted a charge over the
993,825,345 Shares pledged by PIL as security.

Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd. was the lender of record which
had a direct interest in the Shares pledged by PIL. Broad Peak
Investment Holdings Ltd (formerly Broad Peak Investment
Management Ltd) holds 100% interest in Broad Peak Master
Fund Il Ltd. and Hyder Ahmad is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Broad Peak Investment Holdings Ltd.

On 28 January 2022, 993,825,345 Shares pledged by PIL
was discharged, and Ivy 1 and SeaTown ceased to have their
security interests in the 993,825,345 and 496,912,673 Shares
respectively referred to in notes (1) and (4) above. Accordingly,
Madison Pacific Pte. Limited and Madison Pacific Trust Limited
ceased to have their security interests in the said 993,825,345
Shares respectively referred to in note (3) and (4) above on the
same day. Additionally, Broad Peak Master Fund Il Ltd., Broad
Peak Investment Holdings Ltd and Hyder Ahmad ceased to have
their security interests in 438,452,359 Shares referred to in note
(5) above on 28 January 2022.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, there was no other person
known to the Directors or chief executive, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who, as at
31 December 2021, had an interest or a short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

As at 31 December 2021, no Directors or proposed
directors had any existing service contract or proposed
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than transactions disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and
Connected Transaction” above and in note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements (which were approved
by the independent non-executive Directors and in the
opinion of the Directors were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in ordinary course of the Group’s
business), no material transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its immediate and
ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has insured and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which
provides appropriate cover to certain legal actions brought
against its directors and officers. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) when this report prepared
by the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales
attributable to major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

BESFRERX
ARRARFRERRRBBEERSRAR
EARK  AHEERSRASEYE TX
ROTBHBREEENRE - BREENEE
FFOR (K SR 1 2 R (B 7 1 622
BATOHRMBER EFRUSRERBEA A
161 5391 (1)(e) A BIBIF E K -

FEEFRHER
AEMBEEREEBEPRAEEREAR
EFZEALET :

Percentage
BotE
Percentage of purchases attributable to rEESAEEEMEEER 29.9%
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to AEBELREREEMEBER 58.8%
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of sales attributable to AEBGZARFAIGEXRE 9.4%
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of sales attributable to AEBRAARFAIGEXRE 34.4%

the Group’s five largest customers

During the year, none of the Directors nor their associates
nor any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers
noted above.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 21 to
27 under the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section of this annual report.

Report of the Directors
ExaRs

BE - HENEE LHES

ARRHETAHERRRERFABE
HESHERARBMER EHES

B SR 8 150
BE-T-—F+-A=t-ALFE &
T T S AR S o o

BEEEHN
ARRRENLEITIHFEEAERAR
A2 HREMEABHEB 2 ERRITHA
4 e

R RfE A E
RIREFIA B2 S BERNGR A S REM
15

EENSEEEAEBZENR
ARRAEEERBEERABZHNBRA

FREIEZ27TAZIEE NG EEEAS
B —fh e

ZEZ-FF5H o BRWEBEEXERAR

99



100

Report of the Directors
EEgRE

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The remuneration policy for the employees of the
Company is set by the Remuneration Committee on the
basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are decided by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group, including
subsidiaries employed 3,850 (2020: 2,384) full-time
employees; its associates and joint ventures employed
869 (2020: 1,013) full-time employees in total. Staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to
US$125,700,000 (2020: US$41,963,000) for the year. All
full-time salaried employees, except for factory workers
and contract employees, are being paid on a monthly
basis, plus a discretionary performance bonus. Factory
workers are being remunerated based on a basic wage
plus production incentive. The Group ensures that the pay
levels of its employees are competitive and employees are
awarded on a performance related basis within the general
framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. To
further enhance the capability of its human resource, the
Group provides on-the-job training to its employees.

Other than the subsidiaries in the PRC, neither the
Company nor any of its other subsidiaries has established
labour union. The Company and its subsidiaries, however,
are not subject to any collective agreements. The Group
has maintained good relationships with its employees.
None of the Group’s employees is represented by a labour
union.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Teo Siong Seng

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B BN S

Deloitte

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Singamas Container Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 111 to 321, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETEE

FEREETTEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITNEFNUEERRETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the

manufacturing segment

HERESBABNYE  BERRBUREABEE ZRER L

We identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating
to the manufacturing segment as a key audit matter
due to the involvement of significant judgements and
estimates in determining the recoverable amounts of
the respective cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets relating to the manufacturing segment have
been allocated.

MR EETREED AR - BB L&RENA
NEREEEMAENZHREELD BTN ATRE S
RS R BRI R fAE - MATTIRERES IR
% - BERREAREREEE 2 REN
J|REAREFIE -

In view of the unsatisfactory financial performance
of one CGU of the manufacturing segment during
the year, the management of the Group performed
impairment assessment on the relevant CGU which
contain certain property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets by preparing value in
use calculations. As disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, the value in use
calculations require the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGU, based
on key inputs, such as the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume, gross profit margin, growth
rate, and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value.

ENEED N —EREEL BTN FANT KR
R AEEEEEEARMEEABEAER BB
EETYE BERREBEUARFEAEEENERR
SEHETETREN G - MEEEMBREMT4
PSR EAREEMEERTNEERERHERE -
REHEE ENX  BRIXLEENTREEH
%ﬁkﬁ’ﬁ%%ﬁiFﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ$Xﬁiﬁ
£ UFtEHRE -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing
segment included:

RITEHMZE  BEAREBAREREEEZRE
FHERITHEAREF B2 ¢

° Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s process and basis adopted
in preparing the value in use calculations of
the CGU, including key inputs;
THREEECRUREELETLERER
HERSAEANREFNKE  BEER
B AE

o Comparing the expected selling prices,
budgeted sales volume and gross profit
margin used against historical performance,
recent sales transactions and the
management’s budget;

RERNAREE  BEHEEMENX
HELRGE OHEEXSNEEERE
EITLLE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

REEITEE

Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2R E

EREETTEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITNEFNAEERRETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets relating to the

manufacturing segment (Continued)

ERESBERNYE  BERREUAREAREE 2 BENMGE)

As disclosed in notes 4, 19 and 20 to the

consolidated financial statements, the net carrying

amounts of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets relating to the manufacturing

segment for which the management has performed

impairment assessment as at 31 December 2021

are US$8,533,000 and US$894,000 respectively.

Additional impairment losses of US$2,000,000 and

nil in respect of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets have been recognised by the

Group during the year.

AR E SR T4 - 19R20FTHER + 120214
128310 @ BEEDETREMNEHNEEED HBE
BAHYE  BELARBREAREENKREFESD
7l %8,533,0003 7T &2 894,000% 7T © A& B R F A Th
ME - BEEREBRERBEEERIRNBMEBSED
7l /2,000,000F T K E °

Evaluating the reasonableness of the
growth rate applied by the management
of the Group, by referring to the industry
information and discussing with the
management of the Group on revenue
growth strategies in respect of the CGU;
RB2ETEGR  UEAXEEEREN
mARECELETHRAERER - &
BERAEEEEERANERRXRGAE

Working with our internal valuation expert
in assessing the appropriateness of the
discount rate applied by the management of
the Group;

BEATARBLEREREE  FEEAEEE
EERANTREESRE

Comparing the assumptions adopted in the
prior year's management budget with actual
results for the current year, investigating
significant variances identified and
considering the impact on the current year’s
impairment assessments; and

K EFEEREEETRANKRERES
MERARETHR  AEEHNEARE
2 WEBHAFERENGHOTZE R

Evaluating the potential impact on the value
in use calculations of the CGUs based on
the reasonably possible changes of the
budgeted sales volume, growth rate and
discount rate applied by the management of
the Group.
BEAEEEEEREANEEHES - 18
REMFTIRENSIBAIGEE L - FHEHH IR
TEHETEREEFENEELE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Wing Cheong, Wilfred.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

%5"_;& |=|\/

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # %= — & —

{méﬁﬂﬁ xR

—Ft_H=+—HILFE

2021
—_E_—F
Notes US$’000
Kiat FEx
Revenue = -] %) 1,151,764 274,305
Other income HAh A 7 4,747 3,420
Changes in inventories of finished ~ RLAK &t 2 £ & G HY
goods and work in progress FEEH 65,358 (4,827)
Raw materials and consumables R R REREM S
used (733,946) (166,342)
Staff costs & B AR (125,700) (41,963)
Depreciation expense HEER (11,087) (12,814)
Impairment losses under expected ~ TEEBEABARERT
credit loss model, net of reversal R BB R R ER X 8 136 (17,407)
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1% - #EERREZ
and equipment VKRB (2,000) (2,400)
Other expenses HtER 9 (101,920) (43,943)
Finance costs MBER 10 (1,083) (799)
Investment income FE WA 11 5,738 7,381
Other gains and losses H bz & E5 18 12 (1,306) 2,743
Gain from derecognition of AR\ R I SH K R
financial assets measured FATEMNEREE
at amortised cost Frigdas 30 27,001 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—WBAR K 44 412 8,457
Share of results of associates iAo l/N il 761 1,651
Share of results of joint ventures EhEERE 2 HA 196 408
Profit before taxation RRBE A R 13 279,071 7,870
Income tax expense RSB X 16 (70,606) (3,120)
Profit for the year REEER 208,465 4,750
Profit for the year AEEEMLEF
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NE1 8 186,802 4,576
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR I SR A = 21,663 174
208,465 4,750

—r*_‘*
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBRERkEMZEKER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —F ——F+ A =+—HI-F/Z

2021
—_E_—F

Note US$’000
HiaE TER

Other comprehensive Hih2mE =
income
Items that will not be TEHEFFEZ
reclassified to profit or loss: EmEE
Fair value (loss) gain on equity B EER AR
instrument at fair value through PENE 2 ERT A
other comprehensive income BB E) 2
(“FVTOCI”), net of tax effect A EE(EE) W (687) 5,204
Surplus on revaluation of property, — #)% - # 28 K 5% &
plant and equipment upon YN §-C/ESS
transfer to investment properties EHEAR 6,627 -
Items that may be reclassified @~ EHZAEEREF 7 EE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmEE
Exchange differences arising on MEINEFTEZERE
translation 1,029 2,635
Release of exchange translation HE—BERRERZ
reserve and other reserve upon SN 7 H et K%
disposal of an associate H b 6,778 =
Release of exchange translation HIH—ABEPEREMC
reserve upon deregistration of HNEEIT E R 1
a joint venture (15) -
Other comprehensive income FAHEMP2E RS
for the year 13,732 7,839
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWHLE
for the year 222,197 12,589
Total comprehensive income BE2EW AR :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETE 323 200,446 12,051
Non-controlling interests FE5 AR IR R M 2 21,751 538
222,197 12,589
Earnings per share BRER
Basic AR US7.73 US0.19
18 cents =1l cent =11l
Diluted e N/A US0.19
18 FEH cent =11l

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR AR &

As at 31 December 2021 R —ZF =

—F1T=A=1+—8

2021 2020
— T — F il
Notes US$’000 US$'000
HaF FErx FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R RERE 19 76,399 84,185
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 20 40,174 38,755
Investment properties REMSH 21 37,913 18,866
Interests in associates REEE QR 2w 22 18,114 44,812
Interests in joint ventures REBLEZER 23 7,031 7,681
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BARBEGTAEM
PHMEERTA 24 25,392 26,156
Financial asset at fair value through  E AR BETABZEZ
profit and loss (“FVTPL”) TREE 25 3,246 3,027
Other receivables H b R U FRIE 29 15,485 31,678
Deposits for non-current assets IEMEBEELRS 26 806 299
Trade receivables from immediate B Z 1A% A &) FE U BR X
holding company 28 - 91,847
Trade receivables from fellow 5] Y B 2 B FE Y BR 3K
subsidiaries 28 - 28,276
Amounts due from associates JE Wi Bt 2 X RI OB 32 - 13,727
224,560 389,309
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 27 209,814 59,907
Trade receivables JRE L BR 3K 28 79,082 68,802
Prepayments and other receivables — FE1t Kz £ b i U k18 29 41,820 89,631
Derivative financial instruments MEESHBITA 40 202 109
Tax recoverable A El 7 F18 353 804
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 33 438,171 48,787
769,442 268,040

SRS —FEH o B

HECERBRAR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMKMRRE

As at 31 December 2021 R = FE-——F1+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
— T — F il
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Ktat FErx FET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables JE - BR K 34 106,211 50,980
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 2,389 1,345
Accruals and other payables FEET & R R H Ath FE T BR K 36 64,361 19,364
Advances from customers TR BR X 37 46,171 11,352
Amount due to immediate holding ~ JEfT B A% A &) 5118
company 31 6 189
Amounts due to associates JE B 2 A RIFROR 38 123 112
Amounts due to joint ventures B A& B EFIA 38 5 12
Tax payable e I8 23,249 3,599
Bank borrowings RITIER 39 - 27,584
242,515 114,537
Net current assets RBEEFE 526,927 153,503
Total assets less current EEEBERARBERE
liabilities 751,487 542,812
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital AR 41 268,149 268,149
Accumulated profits -yl 340,913 183,801
Other reserves H e 67,210 45,642
Equity attributable to owners of /NS E Y g
the Company 676,272 497,592
Non-controlling interests FEIZE IR AR R M A 56,973 36,094
Total equity RSB 733,245 533,686
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ZEMKMRRE
As at 31 December 2021 R=—F——F+—-H=+—H

2021 2020
— T — F il
Notes US$’000 US$’000
Bt FEx FET

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 35 2,740 1,421
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEEE 43 15,502 7,705
18,242 9,126
751,487 542,812

The consolidated financial statements on pages 111 to
321 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 29 March 2022 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Teo Siong Seng R E
Director %

HNFIEEERIAZEAPBRREE
FeRN T _F-A-tABA#EREE
g W THEERERRE -

Chung Pui King, Rebecca E{fIx
Director &%

SES-55H « BHLECEERAS
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

—F - A=1—ALEE

=

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARRER
Exchange PRC Property  Investment Share Non-
Share translation statutory  revaluation  revaluation option Other  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
AHE wEN  WEER REEf FER
Bx  FERE ERE R ERE BRERE  EtBE  RMER 2% REER g
US$000 US§'000 US§'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$1000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
i i i i i i SE I SEIp SEp SE Tin
(Note b) (Note g)
(W) (Wita)
At 1 January 2020 R=5-%%-f-A 268,149 (2,258) 19,554 11,514 12,389 259 (452) 216,655 525,810 36,807 562,707
Proft for the year TERET - - - - - - - 4,576 4576 174 4750
Fair value gain on equity instrument 27 EfE:F AZA:
at FVTOC], net of tax effect 2EYE ERTR
(MBHBTE)2
ArEENE - - - - 5,204 - - - 5,204 - 5204
Exchange diferences arising RENENEZE
on translation - 2,271 - - - - - - 221 364 2,635
Total comprehensive income FERRENRLE
for the year - 221 - - 5,204 - - 4576 12,051 538 12,689
Share option lapsed BRELR < < S S = (259) = 259 = = =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HBAR - - (2,749) - - - - 2749 = (440) (440)
Forfeiture of dividend previously UGEN )
declred - - - - - - - 28 28 (269 -
Dividend paid to non-controling BITERER
interests ks - - - - - - - - - (627) (627)
Dividend paic to owners of BARRRERE
ihe Company - - - - - - - s oS - s
Transfer from accumulated profits BB A2 = = 169 = = = = (169) = = =
At 31 December 2020 RZEZ%F
+-A=1-A 268,149 13 16,974 11,514 17,593 - (452) 183,801 497,592 36,04 533,686
Proft forthe yeer KERSH = - - - - - - 18R 1882 21663 208465
Fair value loss on equity instrument 27 EfE:F ARA:
at FVTOC], net of tax eflect 2ENE ERTR
(MBHBYE)2
NEEEE - = = = (687) = = = (687) = (687)
Surplus on revaluation of property,  #1% + BERRE
plant and equipment upon EARENER
transfer to investment properties EfEERS - S S 6,627 S S S S 6,627 S 6,627
Release of exchange translafion HE-BERARHL
reserve and other reserve upon MNERERER
disposal of an associate At = 1047 = = = = (269) = 6,778 = 6,778
Release of exchange translation HH-RERERNY
reserve upon deregistration of SERERRE
a joint venture - (15) - - - - - - (15) - (15)
Exchange diferences arising BRENENEEE
on translation - 91 - - - - - - 94 8 1,029
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENE
(expense) for the year (x)ee = 7973 = 6627 687) = (269) 186,802 200446 21,751 22197
Dividend paic to non-controling BRFEERRR
interests Eaks - - - - - - - = = 872 872
Dividend paid to owners of BRALARRRE
the Compary - - - - - - ST i) - T
Transfer from accumulated profits BB A 2R = = 794 = = = = (7,924 = = =
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-%
TZR=t-A 268,149 7,986 24,898 18,141 16,906 - (721) 340,913 676,272 56,973 733,245
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Notes:

(@)

(®)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEREBXR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F = —#F 1+ =-H=—+—HIFE

Other reserve included the difference between consideration
and book value attributable of the related net assets arose when
acquiring additional shares of subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC’) (other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
applicable to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, these entities have
to provide for the PRC statutory reserves before declaring
dividends to their shareholders as approved by the board of
directors. The reserves are not distributable until the end of
the operation periods of the respective entities, at which time
any remaining balance of the reserves can be distributed to
shareholders upon liquidation of the subsidiaries. The reserves
can be used to offset accumulated losses of the entities or
increase capital upon approval from the PRC’s relevant authority.
The distributable profits of the subsidiaries are determined based
on their accumulated profits calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations.

Mt

@

®)

EM fF 1 E IR AIE FTIE 2 ATERSMR 10 5 1Y 2 (B
T FEErAREEEZ FIAYEH °

WRIBEAR AL BZ R P EARAFIE ([ E))
(B8 BPIRGEBEIN 2B L FzHEEE
ED W FELR AR EEE I ERER O FE
WP B ERE - HIBEEZ S A&
FRIfERFTG TR 3R R SHE L AE8E
B - BT EERAIRBRIRE - fE R AEH
WZE R Az REt B RS A8 B B B Bt
& AT ESE IR - HT/E 22 712 AR S FI B 517
15 B & 51 5F B R #UE 2 B R & i F AT T g
&

SES-E5H  BHAELEERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F = —# 1+ =-H=+—HIFFZ

Notes

Ht et

2021
—_E_—F

US$’000
Fxrx

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on property, plant and
equipment written off

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Investment income

Interest expense

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

Fair value (gain) loss on
investment properties

Fair value (gain) loss on
financial asset at FVTPL

Gain from derecognition of
financial assets measured at
amortised cost
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of an associate
Gain on deregistration of
a joint venture
Allowance for credit losses,
net of reversal
— trade receivables from third
parties

— trade receivables from
immediate holding
company

— trade receivables from fellow
subsidiaries

— trade receivables from
associates

— other receivables

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

EETE
B 5 AT 7
FE
MIEE - S
e
FREEENE
HEME - #BER
R EE
FIIHE MR
=B EE
FE(REE L N T) 2 % A
EEELEZ R
®ERA
B H
TEEMIAY
AR EEKE
REMEZ NREE
(W zs) B8
BARBEFABREZ
CREEZAREE
(U z) B8
AR | ERERIR I SRR AN
ENEREE
Fri8 Mz
HE—KBAR 2 W 44
HE—BENR 2 WEE 22
A ABEZNRE

g )

23
EitlEREIEE A EE P S
RS
~ B =TT RURK

- BEEREBRAREK

AR
- R R HIE A B U
AKX

— BrE R R URR R

— H b & W IR
MR - R RRERE
S

279,071
7,655
3,432
1,398
2,172

(761)
(196)
(5,738)
928
(583)

(142)

(149)

(27,001)
412)
(1,370)

(769)

82

(208)
(10)

2,000

2020
—E-TE

—= =

US$’000
TR

7,870
9,087
3,727
233
35
(1,651)
(408)
(7,381)
702
(109)

569

38

(8,457)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 = F = —#F 1+ =-H=—+—HIFE

2021 2020
— T —F Embeletes
US$’000 US$’000
FExn FET
Operating cash flows before EEESBHAIZ
movements in working capital EEBHIRE 259,399 24,062
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEEm s (149,907) 16,208
Increase in trade receivables from 5 = 75 U BR FKIE A1
third parties (16,344) (29,269)
(Increase) decrease in trade EELNENEIGES N
receivables from fellow (8 Hn) R
subsidiaries (162) 604
Decrease in trade receivables B 28 1 B FE LR SRORk >
from associates 4,017 4,772
Decrease (increase) in TENT e H A FE U SR I8
prepayments and other B (g )
receivables 23,761 (42,915)
Increase in trade payables JE A< BREKIG N 55,231 26,132
Increase (decrease) in accruals FEETE R R H Atb fERT
and other payables BRFIE I CR ) 45,015 (2,094)
Increase (decrease) in advances TEUSBR FRIE N O 2)
from customers 26,293 (7,089)
Increase in advances from BEEERATEWERER
immediate holding company 0 7,971 -
(Decrease) increase in advances EELNENSIFEE G
from fellow subsidiaries CRLA) 38N (53) 39
Increase (decrease) in advances N B TR UCBR SR N
from associates CRLA) 550 (86)
Cash from (used) in operations & %8 (Fii)H& 255,771 (9,636)
Interest paid AR (946) 911)
Income tax paid EHAMPTE (42,631) (9,998)
Net cash from (used in) operating % ¥5E 8 F7 15 (FT3%)
activities RE&EFE 212,194 (20,545)

- =

—SFH o BWERERBRLF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HmEABEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —F ——F+ A =+—HI-F/Z

2021 2020
— T —F Eleies
Note US$’000 US$’000
iirsg FEx FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE - WS NEE
equipment (17,505) (8,973)
Deposits paid for non-current assets EfIERBEEZR S (795) (461)
Proceed arising from disposal of LEMB AR ME
subsidiaries 35,841 9,280
Proceed arising from disposal of an & —Et& A &l FT5
associate 49,101 -
Proceed arising from deregistration/ &,/ HEAEDEME
disposal of joint ventures 7,857 964
Repayment from immediate holding B &2 A A&
company 116,455 -
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries A XM B A A& X 34,870 -
Capital reduction of an associate %ﬁ—ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ 138 S
Proceeds on disposal of property,  HEWZE - 2SN R HE
plant and equipment Fri% 613 177
Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL B EIZ AR EBE A
BRazemMEE - (2,825)
Dividends received from associates = WEH#E QA RIRAE
and joint ventures PEES 1,071 2,038
Dividend received from unlisted EHﬁZé‘th ERRE
equity investment ) 1,864 1,817
Interest received 2UFE 794 616
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—MIEB AR 44 - (9,396)
Cash settlement received from WHSTEEM T A
derivative financial instruments REEE 946 41
Net cash from (used in) REZRB S (FT#E)
investing activities REeFE 231,250 (6,722)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 {2 —F ——F+ - H=+—HIF/Z

2021 2020
- Syl — T — T4
US$’000 US$’000
FExn FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New bank loans RITHT AN 74,200 46,311
Repayment of bank loans EERITERK (101,775) (42,324)
Dividends paid to non-controlling Eﬁ#? HxHx?ﬁ

interests 1w (872) (627)
Dividends paid to owners of the EHﬁQﬁHQ?%%

Company (21,766) (40,537)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (2,209) (2,510)
Advance from immediate holding BAREERARFIA

company 179 364
Repayment to immediate holding BEEEERARIKIE

company (362) (278)
Advance from a fellow subsidiary EA—R R BARFIE - 878
Repayment to a fellow subsidiary EE —RRMEBRRKE - (841)
Advances from associates PN VNI E S 359 412
Repayments to associates EEBENRE /TA (348) (401)
Advances from joint ventures BAGBELENR 41 105
Repayments to joint ventures BEAEDLER (48) (169)
Net cash used in financing MEEE RS T

activities (52,601) (89,617)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) ReREERESZEM

IN CASH AND CASH (m2) =88

EQUIVALENTS 390,843 (66,884)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—HA—HZHE&K

AT 1 JANUARY %|=.| Be 48,787 119,032
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREE) s 2

changes (1,459) (3,361)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+ =-A=+—Hz2

AT 31 DECEMBER REREFRE 438,171 48,787
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRE&RZRRLIER :

REPRESENTED BY:

Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRR S 438,171 48,787

TE-FFR o BWEEEEXBERRAF
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GENERAL

Singamas Container Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Pacific International Lines
(Private) Limited (“PIL”) is the controlling shareholder
of the Company that directly holds 993,825,345
shares, representing 41.12% of the total issued
shares capital of the Company as at 31 December
2021 and it is considered as the immediate
holding company of the Company. According to
the latest corporate substantial shareholder notice
filed by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited and
uploaded on the Stock Exchange’s website prior
to the publication of this report, Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited is deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by PIL by virtue
of certain corporations deemed to be controlled
by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited. Both
companies are incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section of corporate information
of the annual report. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in United States dollars
(“US$”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the businesses of
manufacturing of containers and other related
products and providing logistics services.

In order to better reflect the nature of amounts
due from (to) immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries and associates are in trade
nature, certain amounts of amounts due from
immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries
and associates in the prior year’'s consolidated
financial statements have been reclassified to trade
receivables, and certain amounts of amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries and associates in the prior
year’s consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to advances from customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

In addition, the Group applied the agenda
decision of the IFRS Interpretations Committee
(the “Committee”) of the International Accounting
Standards Board issued in June 2021 which
clarified the costs an entity should include as
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

RE M |RME

RAEIER] 2 BRM R E
ZA(TEEBMBREER])

RAFERBIBITHEIST 2
BRMBREER

RAFEREBENRENE B GETAD
NEBRHBHNR_E-_—F—A—A%
HA 1% B 28 B9 4F JZ 08 ) 1 AR U T 31 48
BRI 2 BB EHREER - URELR
B BHREK

EAMKRELRIE 165 20198 M
MIERT REEE
e mE

BEEMBHRELERNFEINR - FXIER
BB G ERIZ39 5% - B -
BAMBHRELRETR -  FHER
BRMBREERFIH K
BRI BRELERIE165
MIEET

Beoh - AEERS T BER SR ERER
Bew TERVERELEIRERE
S([ZEG IR _ZE-_—FAEMN
BIERTE - ZRTEAETEBERT
FEM R B FEREGETHERN
BB A BIRERARNA °

B NSRS - RER KM F AR
BHREENET BT EHARBRA
FERARFREZ BN M RE
R/SGEMBRERP A RER
RERZE -

ZEZ-FF5H o BRWEBEEXERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments relate to
changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, specific hedge accounting requirements
and the related disclosure requirements applying
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(“HKFRS 77).

As at 1 January 2021, the Group’s bank
borrowings, the interest of which are indexed to
benchmark rates that was subject to interest rate
benchmark reform.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuea)

Amendments to HKFRSs that

are mandatorily effective for

the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2 (Continued)

The following table shows the total amounts of
outstanding contracts as at 1 January 2021 and
the amounts of financial liabilities are shown at their
carrying amounts.

RE M |RME

RAEIER] 2 BRM R E
ZR([HRMBHREZERA]

(&

RAFERFATHEIERT 2
BRMBHREER 7

PRNE B EREERFEIY
EEBEIEREI9Y - HEEUK
EHERETY - EEHERE
ERIFEAFERE B BEHREER
F16HFEIEEEE - F_[EKR
HIIEET By 52 & ()
TREMM _ZE-_—F—A—HBX=E
KERMBESE SHAEMNSEMN
BREESR o

Hong Kong London
Interbank Interbank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) (“LIBOR”)
BBRIT RBERAT
EE373-\ EE 373\
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Financial liabilities TRAR
Bank Borrowings RITIENK 8,384 19,200

The amendments have had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements as none of the
relevant contracts has been transitioned to the
relevant replacement rates during the year. The
Group has repaid all the bank borrowings during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and no outstanding
amounts as at year end date.

HERFALERBANEREREE
MR BB HERe Mg HmRYL
BYE AKECEEEE_T_——
FH_A=T—HLEFENMART
B BEFRELEREER -

ZEZ-FF5H o BRWEBEEXERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for
the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of the agenda
decision of the Committee — Cost
necessary to sell inventories

(HKAS 2 Inventories (“HKAS 2”))

In June 2021, the Committee, through its agenda
decision, clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale”
when determining the net realisable value of
inventories. In particular, whether such costs should
be limited to those that are incremental to the sale.
The Committee concluded that the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale should not be limited to
those that are incremental but should also include
costs that an entity must incur to sell its inventories
including those that are not incremental to a
particular sale.

The Group’s accounting policy prior to the
Committee’s agenda decision was to determine
the net realisable value of inventories taking
into consideration incremental costs only. Upon
application of the Committee’s agenda decision, the
Group changed its accounting policy to determine
the net realisable value of inventories taking into
consideration both incremental costs and other cost
necessary to sell inventories. The new accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively.

The application of the Committee’s agenda decision
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new

and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture*

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1and ~ Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilties arising from
a Single Transaction®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment =
Proceeds before Intended Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfiling
a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations (“HKFRS 3”) so that it
refers to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued by International
Accounting Standards Board in March
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) instead
of the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in October 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions
and other events within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (“HKAS 37”) or HK(IFRIC)
Int — 21 Levies (“HK(IFRIC) — Int 217), an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC) —
Int 21 instead of Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework (Continued)

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively
to business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on 1 January 2022.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments to clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be
affected by management intentions
or expectations to settle the liabilities
within 12 months; and

2

RE M |RME

RAEIER] 2 BRM R E
ZR([HRMBHREZERA]
(&)

© 28 M 15 R A B2 37 BT &%

RIETNEBYBREE @

BB TR & ER| FIW AL

Z R AIIEET ()

o RM—IRIARMERE - RPWE
N THEREREBE PR

AEBBENKRBEHRE_T - —F
—A—BRaNEEFERRNER
B ORI L X IEET ©

EBEEREIESERETEA
T BB I FEHIIEET R & B
2 IEE55(2020) 19 15 B 15 5T

ZEEFATEREERBEHRTE
ERSHBRED T B ANEFRE
BB MEBIMES - WKEBENES
MEBEIERE) - BB

. RIARERENNREHRERE
WEMAD B RRBKIERED -
BEEME - ARERIRE

) ZHEFESEEREEER
mHET—EANEES
EREE R

ZEZ-FF5H o BRWEBEEXERAR

129



130

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued)

(i) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a
later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1
to align the corresponding wordings with no change
in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2021, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because of the
nature of the related transactions, other events
or conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material
accounting policy information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the consolidated
financial position or performance of the Group but
may affect the disclosures of the Group’s significant
accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments, equity instrument at FVTOCI, financial
asset at FVTPL and investment properties, that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets (“HKAS 36”).

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(a

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

UG BERENERR
BEESTHE®)

EEETEER®)

(a

e BE(E)
Z& ERBEEI B Az
/]ﬂf“"ﬁ"'ﬁ
NEHRER BB A A=
ZREFEERINERERR S o
REE#E R 2 EEAK D KIEERR
IRER Az A AR EE A EH A
RELEE A RIERNES - B
BAREEMIEE R R ERIRIE
NEBMIEER IR E s i =
Lt DI B SR AR R e s o

R SFE A R R T B S 7R
BERHENRENRAEEZH
Eﬁ#%ﬁiﬁﬁ%‘ﬁﬁ@?ﬁ%* i)
RAR AR

&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets. The gross
assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets,
and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no
further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of
assets and liabilities that do not constitute a
business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase
price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture and the
fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint
venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same
basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

RBGAMERENERR
BEESFTBRE#E

EEETEER®)

(b)

RBEELNTREELFEZ
RE (&)
NSRB[RI
ZREGCETBAEEARAYE
- BRE B ) 2R KRR
tEHE - HFrF RSB R
AEHiEa - BAKERE AR
ERAIHNEECENES - M
RERDBRBEEEYHREE
AIESREBEAR—ESREE
- NEEFFEMRBAERR
Z BN R EBERGEVIRER
BzAAEBE BEQRHEE
EMEREEE - BERRERE
B ARBERNERERZA
A ABELERHYEREMNRE
FHZERBA AL SZHBE QA
BELFEKEHER o i -
BRZBE R RN EEEAR
EFfARMEE K 2 S RRAN
ZBENRHAELEERLE
HEERRERRE - At - &
HEHE OB S A F K
BELER - IZMERFHE
BRENRARERZATEFTA
Hth 2 [ W &5 2 & RRAS A0 2% Bk
RAIRBEERHEREEXE
ERAGEEENRE  A&H
R WA BB RERER DA
ERm(FREHDEHAE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity
method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such
changes in ownership interests.

When the Group increases its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
and the Group continues to use the equity
method, the consideration transferred to
acquire the additional interest is added to the
existing carrying amount of the investment
without remeasurement of the previously
held interest and the underlying assets and
liabilities of relevant associate. The difference
between the consideration transferred and
the Group’s share of net carrying amount
of the identifiable assets and liabilities is
included in the carrying amount of the
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership
interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useful life
Leasehold land and buildings and
site improvements
= on medium term lease 20 1o 50 years

Buildings and site improvements
= on short lease

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fittings and office
equipment

Motor vehicles

110 10 years
5to 15 years

5to 10 years
5to 10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress in the course
of construction for production, supply,
or administrative purposes are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

When the Group makes payments for
ownership interests of properties which
includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease
is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item (including the relevant
leasehold land classified as right-of-use
assets) at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will
be transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

3

R

RE M |RME

MBRENERR

BEESTTHE®)

EEETEER®)

(c)

E-RMERBREYE AR
BREBRTNEREEIERERE
HEERAENERNE - ZIER
MEmEREARBEZENE
MER(BERIBRERAEEE
MARBEE L)X EE B
M2 E W ST HER - WED
XEHERET R - ERERE
ERBEYEE - HREGER
R EREARRA

ME - BERLERNLESETE
TR EFEAZEEEMmE
AR RACE ) 2 B AR L FERR o
EREAME MBS RREBIE
E2REREBEZEEHENS
HIEFE ZBTE) SRR
Jingi=Enie

ZEZ-FF5H o BRWEBEEXERAR

149



150

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair
value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit
or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU
when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU
or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit of the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU or the group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or the group of CGUs) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost, comprises
direct materials, and where applicable, direct
labour, and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Costs of inventories are determined using
weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 157).
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9, initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required
to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and
will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “investment income” line item
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from
associates and bank balances). The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables and trade related amounts
due from immediate holding company, fellow
subsidiaries and associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBmRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 MWmMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBER®
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies BEESHBER®)
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continueqd) (99 =ZHEITAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (B)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TEREERE(E)
For all other instruments (i.e. other receivables, HRFABEMT A - (BIHME
non-trade related amounts due from joint WHIE - BFRAEERERBEA
ventures and associates and bank balances), AIMIEB SHEEARERIRITE
the Group measures the loss allowance equal B8 AEETFENBREHES
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a 128 ATEHAE A1EK - BRIEB
significant increase in credit risk since initial Vs EREEERREZIEM
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime REBES SHR T?Ztﬁﬂi‘ﬁﬁm*
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL B REEBRTFESRE HHT*
should be recognised is based on significant FRAE R R THE R B ¥R
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default LAPK@%“JJD?%EL%’]ZT%’IE
occurring since initial recognition. SR b o
(i) Significant increase in credit risk 0} BBl
In assessing whether the credit risk R B VR EREEER
has increased significantly since initial R B R B EEIE N - R
recognition, the Group compares SEERBREAHSHT
the risk of a default occurring on the BeA 7 ZH Rk EYG
financial instrument as at the reporting ERAEREERMTAZEE 2
date with the risk of a default occurring BARBHEITLL R - T3
on the financial instrument as at the TZ R AEEgE
date of initial recognition. In making REBAERXFHHEEM
this assessment, the Group considers EMER  BEEFSMADH
both quantitative and qualitative T E R AN 3B A 1 R]
information that is reasonable and BeRLEBRATEMLE

supportable, including historical o
experience and forward-looking

information that is available without
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

0] Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s internal credit
rating;

- significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

- an actual or expected
significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic,
or technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) itis becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 MWmMAUGEMBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTBER®
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies BEESHBER®)
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continueqd) (9 =ZHEITAE
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (B)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TEREERE(E)
(v Measurement and recognition of ECL V) TEHERBXRZFER
The measurement of ECL is a function TEHERBRCZHERE
of the probability of default, loss WBEE - BHBEAIE
given default (i.e. the magnitude of A5 BB K/ RE AR
the loss if there is a default) and the [B B2 i O 2 BB o B ABE
exposure at default. The assessment EREBHEBZTHTIE
of the probability of default and loss R E 2 8B IR A 11 & R
given default is based on historical ERE - BHIEAB AN
data adjusted by forward-looking TE {th T % R/ 81 X hnaE 13
information. Estimation of ECL reflects R UEBBREEON
an unbiased and probability-weighted [R\bz RIEERETE ©
amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.
Generally, the ECL is the difference —MmE - EEEABX
between all contractual cash flows that RIBBEHNENAEE 2
are due to the Group in accordance FrEaHREREEAR
with the contract and the cash flows SEERKBRERS
that the Group expects to receive, mEZENEEGRYG
discounted at the effective interest rate BREEBTE 2B HF=a,
determined at initial recognition. w]) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on
the past due status and settlement
pattern of debtors. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group
continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables and
amounts due from associates where
the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Singamas Container Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021

UG BERENERR
BEESTHE®)

EEETEER®)

(9)

2T AE)
TREE (&)

v)

BHERBRZFTER
FER (&)
ETRMERELRRER
HEGEYEHHERMNT
LB H A E 1R = R A A
BRT - AlemTARE
%A B E B AR
ERANME - EEETEH
EEER - UHEREEA
Rl D ZRUNEER
BTN o

MBWARE®EEMNK
HARE  RIFZER
BEBNMERRIE Tt
BRT - FEWAZSRE
BEMBESRKAGE

AEBEBBAEMESH
TEMEEENERTE
RMERSELEE - K&
Uit B R e e Ui B 8 R R AR
RHEEAEBBEAE
AR B RSN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss. On derecognition
of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated profits.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if
the contractual cash flows are renegotiated
or otherwise modified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets
(Continued)

Except for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows as
a result of interest rate benchmark reform
in which the Group applies are practical
expedient, when the contractual terms of
a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in
a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors. If
qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the
Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3 WHESRSYBBRENERK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTTHR®
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Significant accounting policies BEESHBER®)
(Continued)
(9) Financial instruments (Continueqd) (99 =ZHEITAE)
Financial liabilities and equity TR ERED
Classification as debt or equity S BEF S Em
Debt and equity instruments are classified B kEETAREGNLH
as either financial liabilities or as equity HNANBARSREBE RERZTA
in accordance with the substance of the NEESEATHABRIERT
contractual arrangements and the definitions B o

of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments #mTA

An equity instrument is any contract that T AATZAERBEENR
evidences a residual interest in the assets of HFT B BEEMNFIRE RO E0
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. BH) c RARIMBEITHERILAR
Equity instruments issued by the Company EFTESFRIBHBREZEZITHAR
are recognised at the proceeds received, net MR o

of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost LEBEK AT EN S REE
Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, é F&ﬁﬁ% BE(BERITER BN
trade payables, other payables and amounts BRI E@Eﬁﬁ%m&ﬂﬁﬁ%
due to immediate holding company, a fellow ERAR] —Iﬁglﬂﬂé’
subsidiary, associates and joint ventures are ERaREEPENE) Ef?: Hz
subsequently measured at amortised cost, BT REIREEKAGTE -

using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FE KRR

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial
liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are
offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good
or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of
the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

A contract liability (presented as “advances
from customers” in consolidated statement
of financial position) represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition:
measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured
based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of
services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has
a right to consideration in an amount that
corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date
(service contracts in which the Group bills a
fixed amount daily of service provided), the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to
which the Group has the right to invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on
or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests
of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMI|RME

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of
a contract (Continued)

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of that
have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the
site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition
requ